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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

31 31 31 31 31
9,403 10,046 10,717 11,640 12,029
1,013,079 1,082,356 1,154,650 1,254,094 1,296,004
2,352 1,439 1,825 1,984 2,375
253,404 155,038 196,626 213,756 255,883
932 267 3,410 795 913
100,414 28,767 367,393 85,653 98,367
915 915 915 915 915
98,582 98,582 98,582 98,582 98,582
91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500
9,397 9,524 12,880 13,578 14,503
1,012,433 1,026,116 1,387,691 1,462,894 1,562,553
114,592 119,635 120,546 116,516 125,555
12,346,142 12,889,475 12,987,626 12,553,434 13,527,296
102.70 104.09 140.77 148.39 158.50
11,065 11,215 15,167 15,988 17,077
10.19 2.92 37.27 8.69 9.98
1,098 315 4,015 936 1,075
8.2 8.0 10.7 11.7 11.6
10.4 2.8 30.4 6.0 6.5
7,839 5,914 8,335 5,935 5,764
844,574 637,174 898,013 639,437 621,013
(9,830) (9,676) (7,484) (3,016) (8,757)
(1,059,084) (1,042,492) (806,326) (324,944) (943,479)
2,285 5,336 1,377) (4,495) 8,339
246,186 574,901 (148,358) (484,291) 898,444
2,701 4,198 3,540 2,198 6,790
291,006 452,293 381,400 236,813 731,555
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31
2018 2019 2020
$3,178 $593 $684
232 202 229
$3,410 $795 $913
14
2019 2020
2019 795 2020
913 2019 2020
389 89
71 30
218 176
87
0.9 2019 31
13.6 2020 31 14.5 2019
31 92.9 2020 31 97.7
2019 31 6.8 2020 31 6.7
2018 2019
2018 3,410 2019
795 2018 2019
2017 TCJA 2018 2.9
2018 2019
923
132 35
896
2018 31 12.9 0.7
2019 31 13.6 2018 31
98.4 2019 31 92.9

2018 31 7.6 2019 31 6.8
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31
2018 2019
2018 2019 2020

2019 2020
$8,167 $8,694 $8,775 6% 1%
1,974 2,235 2,558 13% 14%
576 711 696 23% )%
10,717 11,640 12,029 9% 3%
7,041 6,909 6,820 @)% L)%
1,863 2,769 2,854 49% 3%
1,813 1,962 2,355 8% 20%
140 188 155 34% (18)%
1,953 2,150 2,510 10% 17%
401 372 590 % 59%
1,028 1,038 1,197 1% 15%
1,429 1,410 1,787 W% 27%
524 740 723 41% Q)%
(2,654) 147 39 106% (73)%
$3,178 $593 $684 (81)% 15%

2019 593 2020 684

2019 2020
389 89
108 218
159 85
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2018 2019 2020
$1,970 $2,559 $2,488
67 (53) 180
1,903 2,506 2,668
1,344 (1,078) (703)
(1,306) 1,015 650
(90) 304 219
$1,851 $2,747 $2,834

2019 2,747 2020 2,834
2020 2019 2,506
2,668
2019 63
2020 53

2019 304 2020 219
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2018 2019
2018 2019 2020
2019 2020
« D
644 567 630 (12)% 11%
255 263 337 3% 28%
516 498 470 @)% (6)%
1,415 1,328 1,437 (6)% 8%
TMNA
420 316 201 (25)% (36)%
52 35 48 (33)% 37%
481 471 426 @)% (10)%
953 822 675 (14)% (18)%
« ) 61.6% 59.8% 63.4%
2018 2019 80 17
2020
17
TMNA
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2018 2019
2018 2019 2020
2019 2020
$52,378 $53,016 $56,364 1% 6%
« 17,269 17,501 17,632 1% 1%
69,647 70,517 73,996 1% 56
38,697 37,927 36,387 @)% @)%
$108,344  $108,444  $110,383 % 2%
37 37 36
66 67 69
988 956 938 3% )%
364 372 386 2% 4%
1,352 1,328 1,324 @)% %
334 309 294 % )%

24 60
24 85
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2020 31
2019 31
2019
2020 31
2019 31
2020 31 2019 31
31
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460 578 562 26% @)%
93 114 119 23% 4%
38 57 60 50% 5%
117 137 137 17% %
248 308 316 24% 3%
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) $7,041 $6,909 $6,820 @)% D%
1,469 1,473 1,400 % ()%
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2020 6,820 2020 2019

COVID-19
2019 2020
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2,489 2,475 2,593 W% 5%
8,272 8,975 9,503 8% 6%
)

$882 $904 $933 2% 3%

129 126 187 @)% 48%

1,011 1,030 1,120 2% 9%

425 446 455 5% %

329 347 364 5% 5%

754 793 819 5% 3

257 237 301 )% 27%

25 35 72 40% 106%

$232 $202 $229 (13)% 13%

2019 202 2020
229 2019 2020
61
37
2019 2020
2019 2019 31
2020 2020 31 45
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$544 $1,437
(441) (966)
42) (420)
$61 $51
$1,407 $3,116
(441) (966)
(940) (2,105)
$26 $45
2020 31
10
2019 31

17
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31 38 45
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31
2018 2019 2020
0.44% 0.39% 0.44%
0.31% 0.23% 0.15%
0.39%% 0.34% 0.34%
1.46% 1.45% 1.22%
« ) $7,497 $7,281 $7,859
60 « )
« ) 0.32% 0.34% 0.41%
« ) 0.27% 0.27% 0.34%
0.30% 0.31% 0.39%%
2019 31 2020 31
0.34 2019 1.45
2020 1.22
2020
2019
7,281 2020 7,859
60
2019 0.31 2020 0.39
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$622 $597 $602
(516) (464) (470)
90 97 95
401 372 590
$597 $602 $817
31
2018 2019 2020
0.66% 0.70% 0.97%
0.35% 0.27% 0.25%
0.55% 0.55% 0.73%
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TFS

TMCC TFS
12
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2019 31 2020 31
$25,374 $25,273 2.62% $27,040 $26,968 1.85%
( MTN
) 33,540 33,397 2.82% 33,658 33,527 2.44%
( EMTN
) 15,916 15,810 1.90% 17,074 16,974 1.69%
6,045 6,041 3.12% 5,705 5,703 2.06%
80,875 80,521 2.60% 83,477 83,172 2.07%
12,421 12,401 2.62% 14,597 14,568 2.13%
$93,296 $92,922 2.60% $98,074 $97,740 2.08%
( ) MTN EMTN
2019 31 $25,374 $33,540 $15,916 $6,045 $80,875
1,666 10,323 2,745 3,899 18,633
- (10,205) (1,016) (4,200) (15,421)
- - (571) (39) (610)
2020 31 $27,040 $33,658 $17,074 $5,705 $83,477
2020 31
$13,891 $7,000 $- $3,405 $24,296
2020
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SEC

EMTN

EMTN

EMTN
EMTN

EMTN

2020

31
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2020
24.7 28.7
26.7
SEC
2021
TMCC
TMCC
EMTN
EMTN 2019 EMTN
50.0
15.3
EMTN
EMTN
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TMCC
2019 31 $12,421
10,120
(7,944)
2020 31 $14,597
2020 31 $4,987
TMCC
TMCC

84/318



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

T™MCC
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2019

50
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2021 12
SEC
2019 31 2020 31
SEC
364
2019 11 TMCC TCPR
2021 2023 2025 364
5.0 5.0
5.0
2020 31
TMCC 2020 31 TMCC
4.6 2.5 2021 2.1
2023
2019
31 2020 31
TMCC ™S 2022 5.0
2020 31 2020 30

3.0 1.86

87/318



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TFS
TMCC
TFS
TFS 100
TFS 10
2020 31 92,989
TFS ( )TFS
)
TFS
30
1
2 TFS TFS
TFS
TFS
TFS  TMCC TFS
TMCC 100

TMCC 100,000
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TMCC

TMCC

TCPR

TCPR

TFS

LIBOR
2017

LIBOR

TMCC
TMCC
TMCC TFS
TMCC
TMCC
TFS
T™CC TFS
TFS TMCC
TFS
TFS
TCPR
LIBOR
2021
ARR

SOFR
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TFS
TMCC TMCC
TFS
TFS
TFS
TMCC
TMCC TFS
T™MCC
TCPR
TCPR
TFS TCPR
TCPR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR ARR
ARR
ARR
SOFR LIBOR
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LIBOR
LIBOR

TMCC T™CC

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC

12
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FASB
2020 FASB
ASU 2020-04



31

2019
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OooooOodd
2020 31
31 2020 31
2020
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

$99,519  $51,784  $19,688  $12,414  $4,042  $5,005  $6,496
$4,558 1,389 907 569 353 232 1,108
$(3) 383 181 41 (28) (38) (542)
$139 21 23 15 12 10 58
$15 15 - - - - -
$104,228  $53,502  $20,799  $13,039  $4,379  $5,299  $7,120

170 164 1,445

™S 3.0
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US GAAP
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2020

2020
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58

10
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ALCO

100

ALCO
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12
100
2019 31 2020 31 100bp
100bp 100bp

2019 31 $(9.7) $10.1
2020 31 $(11.0) $44.1

100bp 2019

31 2020 31

LIBOR
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2020 31

1SDA

1SDA

2020 31

1SDA
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2019 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$213 $212 $205 $2 $- $- $5
9 11 2 8 1 - -
50 50 - - 50 - -
70 70 - 70 - - -
160 162 - 14 62 81 5
75 75 40 3 2 5 25
52 53 12 2 17 3 19
$629 $633 $259 $99 $132 $89 $54
$2,275 $- $412 $1,316 $522 $25
$2,908 $259 $511 $1,448 $611 $79

2020 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$160 $176 $176 $- $- $- $-
9 11 2 8 1 - -
250 249 - - 249 - -
604 601 - - 601 - -
188 197 - 16 112 66 3
95 95 59 12 10 3 11
75 72 13 5 33 12 9
$1,381 $1,401 $250 $41 $1,006 $81 $23
$2,419 $194 $855 $796 $574 $-
$3,820 $444 $896 $1,802 $655 $23
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TFS
TMCC 12
TMCC 50,000,000,000
T™MCC
2019 13

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)

T™MCC 50,000,000,000
TMCC TMCC

2017
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(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch)
L-2453 2-4
(2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg)

(Vertigo Building - Polaris)

T™MCC
TMCC TMCC TCPR
2024 364
5.0 5.0
11 TMCC TCPR
2023 2025 364
5.0

T™CC
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2019
2022

2019
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5.0



2019

DSC

CSC
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CSC

DSC
DSC

102/318

DSC

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TMNA
CSC
CSC



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500
50,000,000 915,000,000
1996 5,000 91,500 538,700 985 8,210
%
75024-5965
2-5
91,500 100
6565
THCC TMCC 2016 2017
2018 2019 TMCC  TFSIC
10 2020

2020
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)
1961 1990 T™S 2007 10 2013
T™S
2012
2013
2013 2016
2013
2017 12
2016 2017 12
2016 2017
TFS 2016
TFS 2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2020
TMNA 2016 TMCC
2016 2018
TMCC 2018 TMCC
1970 10 2003 TMCC 2012 2014
2014 2015 ™S
2015 2017 12
2017 12
2019
2019 2019 TMCC
2017 12
2019 TMCC
2019 TMCC TFSIC
1971 30 1993 2007
2012 12
2013 2015 12
2016 2019
TFS
2019 TMCC
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1963 1985 SMBC
SMBC 2010 2012
2012
2013 2013 2014
2014 2015
2015
2017 12 SMBC
2018 TFSIC
TFS
2018 2019
2019
2018 TMCC
1959 10 29 1984 2012 2015
2015 2017
2015 2018
2017 2019
2017 2020 TMNA
2018 2019
2019 2019
2019
2020 2019
2020
T™CC TMNA
1959 18 1981 11 ™S ™S 2005
2007
2007 2012
2012 2017
2017 TMNA
™S
2017 TMCC

TMCC
TMCC
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TMCC
14
1961
1971 30
1970 10
1964 10 1993 TMCC 2009
2011
2011 2014
TMCC
2014
2017 TMS
2017
2018 12 TMCC
2018 12 2019
TMCC
2019 TMCC
1966 1990 TS 2013 12
2015 TMS
2015 2018 12
T™MS
2018
12 TMcC
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1961 12 11 2002 TFSB 2008 12
2012 TFSB
2012 2018
TFSB
2016
2018 TFSB
2018 2019
TMCC
2019 2020
TMCC
2020 TMCC
2019
TFSB
1969 11 30 1993 ™S 2012
2013 TFSB
2013 2017
TMCC
2017
2019 TMCC
2019

T™MCC
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1A
1A TMCC
IT
1A
T™MCC
ARA
TMCC
1A 1A

1A TMCC 1A
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10 16
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31
2019 2020
$9,947 $10,882
- 199
445 422
63 865
$10,455 $12,368
10-K
10-Q
1983 TMCC

SEC
TMCC

2020 31
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2020 TMCC
2019 2020
TMCC 2020 2020
5,461,530
2015 ™S ™S
2015 2015
™S
™S
2015 TMCC TCPR
™S
T™S
120 60
60
50
™S ™S
62

55

111/318



T™MS
65

T™MS

TMCC

TMNA

2015

TMNA

2015

™S

T™S
TMNA
™S
TMNA
a
TMNA
60
T™S
2015

™S

T™S

112/318

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

25
T™MS
TMNA
b
59.5
™S



TMNA
2015 T™S
SERP
SERP
SERP
b SERP
c TMS
100
T™MS TMNA
T™S
TMNA
TMCC
TMNA
DCP
TMNA
15

TMNA
TMNA

SERP

TMCC
SERP
a SERP

T™MS

100
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ERSP

SERP

62

SERP

SERP

DCP
T™S

10

T™MS
2015

DCP

25

ooooooo
TMNA
ERSP
2015
30
SERP
55
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SERP



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
DCP DCP
T™MS TMNA
2017 DCP
TMCC
DCP 2016 TMNA
T™S
PULTIP TMCC
PULTIP
DCP
12 31
PULTIP
2016 PULTIP
TMCC PULTIP

2016 TMNA
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23

38

103

134

59

193

2019

2020

2020

SEC

31
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2020
107.74
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10-K

131

oOoOooodn

2020 31

TMCC 1934

SEC
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31
2018 2019 2020

$ 8,167 [\ 879,913 |$ 8,694 |\ 936,692 [$ 8,775 |\ 945,419

1,974 | 212,679 2,235 | 240,799 2,558 | 275,599

576 62,058 711 76,603 696 74,987

10,717 | 1,154,650 11,640 | 1,254,094 12,029 | 1,296,004

7,041 | 758,597 6,909 | 744,376 6,820 | 734,787

1,851 | 199,427 2,747 | 295,962 2,834 | 305,335

1,825 | 196,626 1,984 | 213,756 2,375 | 255,883

882 95,027 904 97,397 933 | 100,521

257 27,689 292 31,460 322 34,692

2,964 | 319,341 3,180 | 342,613 3,630 | 391,096

401 43,204 372 40,079 590 63,567

1,357 | 146,203 1,385 | 149,220 1,561 | 168,182

425 45,790 446 48,052 455 49,022

2,183 | 235,196 2,203 | 237,351 2,606 | 280,770

781 84,145 977 | 105,262 1,024 | 110,326

(2,629)| (283,248) 182 19,609 111 11,959

$ 3,410 [\ 367,393 [$ 795 |\ 85,653 [$ 913 [\ 98,367
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31
2018 2019 2020
$ 3,410 |\ 367,393 [$ 795 [\ 85,653 |$% 913 | \ 98,367
2018 646
9| (3.129) 11 1,185 13 1,401
2019 ()
(539)
2020 ()
(431)
2018 16
1724 @5)| (2.694) 9 970 @ (108)
2019 ()
(323)
2020
G4)|  (5.818) 20 2,155 12 1,293
$ 3,356 [\361,575|$  815|\ 87,808 |$ 925 |\ 99,660
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2019 31 2020 31
$ 2,198 | \ 236,813 6,790 | \ 731,555
985 106,124 1,739 187,360
2,908 313,308 3,820 411,567
70,517 7,597,502 73,996 7,972,329
37,927 4,086,255 36,387 3,920,335
1,981 213,433 2,823 304,150
$ 116,516 | \ 12,553,434 125,555 | \ 13,527,296
$ 92,922 | \ 10,011,416 97,740 | \ 10,530,508
5,452 587,398 5,458 588,045
4,564 491,725 7,854 846,190
102,938 11,090,540 111,052 11,964,742

2019 2020 31
100,000 915 98,582 915 98,582
91,500

2 215 2 215
3 323 15 1,616
12,658 1,363,773 13,571 1,462,140
13,578 1,462,894 14,503 1,562,553
$ 116,516 | \ 12,553,434 125,555 | \ 13,527,296

2019 31 2020 31
$ 11,075 | \ 1,193,221 12,375 [ \ 1,333,283
5,307 571,776 5,586 601,836
192 20,686 131 14,114
$ 16,574 | \ 1,785,683 18,092 [ \ 1,949,232
$ 12,401 | \ 1,336,084 14,568 [ \ 1,569,556
12 1,293 12 1,293
$ 12,413 | \ 1,337,377 14,580 [ \ 1,570,849
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2017 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 25 |'$ 8,582 | $ 9,524
_ — — 3,410 3,410
— — (54) — (54)
2018 31 $ 915 | $ 2|3 9| $ 11,992 | $ 12,880
— — 12 (122) (110)
— — — 795 795
— — 20 — 20
_ — — @) @)
2019 31 $ 915 | $ 2| % 3s 12,658 | $ 13,578
— — — 913 913
— — 12 — 12
2020 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 15 |$ 13,571 | $ 14,503
2017 31 \ 98,582 | \ 215 | '\ 2,694 [\ 924,625 [ \ 1,026,116
— — — 367,393 367,393
_ — (5,818) — (5.818)
2018 31 \ 98,582 | \ 215 | \  (3,124)[\ 1,292,018 [ \ 1,387,691
— — 1,293 (13,144) (11,851)
— — — 85,653 85,653
— — 2,155 — 2,155
_ — — (754) (754)
2019 31 \ 98,582 | \ 215 | '\ 323 [\ 1,363,773 | \ 1,462,894
— — — 98,367 98,367
— — 1,293 — 1,293
2020 31 \ 98,582 | \ 215 |\ 1,616 |\ 1,462,140 | \ 1,562,553
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31

2018 2019 2020

$ 3,410 |\ 367,393 | $ 795 | \ 85,653 | $ 913 | \ 98,367

7,123 767,432 7,023 756,658 6,930 746,638
(2,003)| (215,803)|  (2,346)| (252,758)|  (2.,485)| (267,734)
401 43,204 372 40,079 590 63,567
607 65,398 617 66,476 707 76,172
1,502 161,825 (938)|  (101,060) (515) (55,486)
(41) (4,417) ©) (215) ) (5,064)
(10) (1,077) — — 10 1,077
ain|  (12,606) (86) (9,266) (482) (51,931)
(2,578)|  (277,754) 156 16,807 2 215
(40) (4,310) 20 2,155 19 2,047

81 8,727 324 34,908 122 13,144
8,335 898,013 5,935 639,437 5,764 621,013

(7.137)|  (768,940)|  (1.251)| (134,783)|  (2,392)| (257,714)
1,376 148,250 1,740 187,468 345 37,170
5,580 601,189 2,457 264,717 1,200 129,288

(25,713)| (2,770,319)|  (24,686)| (2,659,670)| (29,375)| (3.,164,863)

24,100 | 2,596,534 24,082 | 2,594,595 25,668 | 2,765,470

388 41,803 (89) (9,589) ©) (215)

16,575)| (1,785,791)|  (16,068)| (1,731,166)| (15,350)| (1,653,809)

9,821 | 1,058,115 11,395 | 1,227,697 11,775 | 1,268,639
— — (569) (61,304) (600) (64,644)
— — 36 3,879 25 2,694

755 81,344 — — — —
79) (8,511) (63) (6,788) (1) (5,495)

(7.484)| (806,326)|  (3,016)|  (324,944)|  (8,757)|  (943,479)
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31

2018 2019 2020

21,768 | 2,345,284 21,153 | 2,279,024 26,847 | 2,892,496
(23,814)| (2,565,720)|  (23,624)| (2,545,250)|  (23,375)| (2,518,423)

664 71,539 (2,022)| (217,850) 1,861 200,504
— — — — 3,000 323,220

5 539 0) (215) 16 1,724

— — — — (10) (1,077)
(1,377)| (148,358) (4,495)| (484,291) 8,339 898,444
(526)|  (56,671) (1,576)| (169,798) 5,346 575,978
5,285 569,406 4,759 512,735 3,183 342,936

$ 4,759 |\ 512,735 | $ 3,183 [\ 342,936 [ $ 8,529 [\ 918,914

$ 1,722 |\ 185,528 | $ 2,239 [\ 241,230 [ $ 2,568 [\ 276,676
$ 8 |\ 862 | $ 42 |\ 4,525 |1 $ 269 |\ 28,982
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)
TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS T™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC
T™CC
100
™IS
™IS

™IS
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2020 31 23
11

2020 31 25

2019 16
2021
2020 TMCC Inc.
TMCC
TMCC
2021
US GAAP
12
TMCC 100

VIE

US GAAP
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2019
ASU
2016-02
ROU 122
ASU 2017-08

ASU 2017-12
2020 ASU  2019-07

SEC No.33-10532

No.33-10442
2019

FASB SEC
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2016-02 842 ASU
ASU 2016-02
ASU 2016-02 115
815
SEC
No.33-10231
SEC

SEC
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2016 FASB ASU 2016-13 326
FASB
ASU 2020
2020
292
ASU
2018 FASB ASU 2018-13
820 ASU 2020
2018 FASB
ASU  2018-15
ASU 2020
2018 10 FASB
ASU 2018-17 810 ASU 2021
2019 FASB ASU 2019-04 326 815
825 ASU
2020 815 825
326
2020 FASB
ASU 2020-04 848

2022 12 31
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50

50
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2019 31
$ 213 $ 2 $ @ 3 212
9 2 — 11
50 — — 50
70 — — 70
160 3 @ 162
35 — — 35
1 — — 1
39 — — 39
52 1 — 53
$ 629 $ 8 $ @ 3 633
2,275
$ 2,908
2020 31
$ 160 $ 16 $ — $ 176
9 2 — 11
250 — @ 249
604 — ®) 601
188 10 @ 197
47 2 — 49
1 — — 1
47 — 0} 45
75 — ®) 72
$ 1,381 $ 30 $ 00) $ 1,401
2,419
$ 3,820
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250
90
2020 2019 31 12 12
31
2018 2019 2020
41 $ (12) $ 9
— s — s ®
14 $ 41
— 5
2020 31
$ 878 $ 874
128 132
10 115 123
10 90 105
170 167

$ 1,381 $ 1,401
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90

2020
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2019 31 2020 31
$ 42,621 $ 44,414
11,318 12,674
17,696 17,873
71,635 74,961
695 890
(1,314) (1,128)
(304) (486)
(195) (241)
(499) (727)
$ 70,517 $ 73,996

31

2021 $ 14,437 $ 13,267
2022 13,358 1,476
2023 11,780 876
2024 9,103 676
2025 5,696 454
2,714 1,124
$ 57,088 $ 17,873
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30
60
90

59
89
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2019 2020
31 31
$ 53,047 $ 56,064
657 717
162 203
73 104
$ 53,939 $ 57,088
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2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
31 31 31 31 31 31

$ 9,155 $ 8,750 $ 4,019 $ 3,974 $ 2,448 $ 3,132

1,127 962 554 576 70 195
152 92 84 55 63 92
6 22 14 23 4 —

$ 10,440 $ 9,826 $ 4,671 $ 4,628 $ 2,585 $ 3,419

120

2019 31

90

30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 657 % 162 $ 73 3 892 $53,047 $53,939 $ 47

— — 1 1 10,439 10,440 —
— — — — 4,671 4,671 —
— — 4 4 2,581 2,585 —

$ 657 % 162  $ 78 % 897 $ 70,738 $71,635 $ 47

2020 31

90

30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 717 $ 203 $ 104 $ 1,024 $56,064 $57,088 % 66

— — — — 9,826 9,826 —
— — 1 1 4,627 4,628 —
_ _ — — 3,419 3,419 —

$ 7170 $ 203 % 105 $ 1,025 $ 73,936 $ 74,961 $ 66
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2020

2019

31
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2019 2020 2019 2020
31 31 31 31
$ 161 $ 104 $ 28 $ 18
93 72 11 9
67 92 60 38
$ 321 $ 268 $ 99 $ 65
$ 130 $ 93
152 148
20 19
$ 302 $ 260
$ 231 $ 253
$ 231 $ 253
291 197
245 220
87 111
$ 854 $ 781
2019
2020 2019 31
288 329
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2020 2019

2020 2019

2020 2019

COVID-19

2019 ASU 2016-02

12
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2020 2019 31
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2019 31 2020 31
$ 42,869 $ 40,698
7,532 7,940
50,401 48,638
(225) (223)
(2,085) (1,962)
(10,061) (9,976)
(103) (90)
$ 37,927 $ 36,387

31
2021 $ 5,981
2022 3,772
2023 1,339
2024 106
2025 5
$ 11,203
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120

138/318



2020

2018

2019

2019

264

31

31

COVID-19
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31
2019 2020
$ 597 602
(464) (470)
97 95
372 590
$ 602 817
2019 31
312 $ 151 463
(330) — (330)
50 — 50
272 44 316
304 $ 195 499
— 99 99
304 96 400
53,939 17,696 71,635
— 623 623
53,939 17,073 71,012
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OooooOodd
231 2019 31
2019 31
TMNA 1,091
132 TNNA
2020 31
2019 $ 304 $ 195 $ 499
(358) (12) (370)
50 — 50
490 58 548
2020 31 $ 486 $ 241 $ 727
$ — 65 65
$ 486 $ 176 $ 662
2020 31 $ 57,088 $ 17,873 $ 74,961
$ — $ 528 $ 528
$ 57,088 $ 17,345 $ 74,433
253 2020 31
2020 31
TNNA
1,047 140

TMNA
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2018 30

ISDA

2020 31
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2019

2020
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2019 31 2020 31
$ 49,254 472 $ 30,362 1,410
2,771 72 488 27
$ 52,025 544 $ 30,850 1,437
(441) (966)
(42) (420)
61 51
$ 57,593 622 $ 69,079 1,826
9,796 785 13,181 1,290
$ 67,389 1,407 $ 82,260 3,116
(441) (966)
(940) (2,105)
26 45
31 10
2019 31 17
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31

2018 2019 2020
$ 1,970 $ 2,559 $ 2,488
(67) (53) 180
1,903 2,506 2,668
1,344 (1,078) (703)
(1,306) 1,015 650
(90) 304 219
$ 1,851 $ 2,747 $ 2,834

2019 31 2020 31

$ 80,875 $ 80,521 2.60 $ 83,477 $ 83,172 2.07
12,421 12,401 2.62 14,597 14,568 2.13
$ 93,206 $ 92,922 2.60 $ 98,074 $ 97,740 2.08
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31
2021 $ 51,489
2022 19,170
2023 11,942
2024 3,973
2025 5,012
6,488
(334)
$ 97,740
) 2049
2020 2019 31 27.0

25.3
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2019
50
364
2019 11 TMCC TCPR
2021 2023 2025 364
5.0 5.0
5.0
2020 2019 31
T™MCC 2020 31 T™CC 2021
2023 2.5 2.1 4.6
2020 2019 31
TMCC 2022 ™S
5.0 2020 31

2020 30 1.86 3.0
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VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
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VIE
2019 31

VIE VIE
$ 630 $ 11,075 $ 6 $ 9,202 $ 10
355 5,307 186 3,199 2
$ 985 $ 16,382 $ 192 $ 12,401 % 12

2020 31

VIE VIE
$ 694 $ 12,375 $ 5 $ 10,933 $ 10
302 5,586 126 3,635 2
$ 996 $ 17,961 $ 131 $ 14,568 $ 12

VIE TMCC
VIE TMCC TMCC

VIE 2020 2019 31 1,182 1,486

TMCC VIE

VIE TMCC
VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE

TMCC
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TMCC
TMNA
TDIG
TMNA
VIE
2020 2019 31
TDIG 2020 2019 2018
VIE
2020 2019 31
2019 31 2020 3
$ 1,378 $ 1,226
144 139
1,522 1,365
100 100
$ 1,622 $ 1,465

T™MCC
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2020
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12

2020 36 2019

TMNA
2019 31 102 97

TMCC
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2019 31
31

2020 $ 22
2021 19
2022 20
2023 12
2024 10
61
$ 144

2020 31

31

2021 $ 21
2022 23
2023 15
2024 12
2025 10
58
$ 139
19
$ 120

ROU
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2020 3l
ROU $ 114
120
9.29
3.05
$ 23
ROU $ 17
T™MCC TMCC
100
31 2028 20 2029 50 2030
10 2031 10 2032 10 T™MCC
T™MCC
TMCC 2020
2019 31 TMCC
2020 31
2020 2019

31
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10
TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120
60
2020 2019 2018

TMCC
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2020

2020

55

100

2019

TMNA

2019

10

30

2018

2018

66.67
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25
2015

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC TFSIC
TMCC
TMCC
TMNA  TFSIC

TMCC

TMCC

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

ooooOoog
TMCC TFSIC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TFSIC TMCC
31
2018 2019 2020
(45) $ (55) 19)
(10) 76 120
3 4 8
(52) 25 109
(2,625) 207 145
48 (49) (141)
— @ @
(2,577) 157 2
(2,629) $ 182 111
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TCJA
2020
2020 2019
2018 TCJIA
31.6

2.9
2019
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31

2018 2019 2020

31.6 21.0 21.0

4.8 4.6 4.0
(0.1) 1.3) 3.9)
1.1 (1.0) B.7
— (2.8) (5.6)
0.4 1.4) (1.0)
(371.6) — _
(0.6) 0.5) —

(336.6) 18.6 10.8

2018
35 21 2018
TCJA 12 TCJA

31
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31
2019 2020
$ 7,121 $ 5,180
847 629
235 254
44 14
53 83
$ 8,300 $ 6,160
361 370
192 188
2,297 100
— 25
22 32
2,872 715
(24) (13)
$ 2,848 $ 702
) $ 5,452 $ 5,458
2020 2019 31
2019 31
147 2020 31
37 2020 31
2022
2020 31
52 10
2019 31
38 14 12

2028
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2020 2019 31
13 24
2020 2019 31
2020 31 TMNA
47
2020 2019 31
TMCC
TFSB
2020 2019 2018 31
11

12

2020 2019 2018
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oOoOooodn
TCJIA
243 233
2019 31 TMNA
TMCC
TFSIC
31
2018 2019 2020
6 $ 6 $ 7
— 1 12
6 $ 7 $ 19
17
2020 2019 2018 31
2020
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2020 31 2020 2019 2018 IRS
12
31
2018 2019 2020
$ 1,590 $ 1,930 $ 2,065
$ (12) $ (24) $ (59)
$ 95 $ 96 $ 96
$ 182 $ 181 $ 181
$ 13 $ 16 $ 26
$ 80 $ 95 $ 102

©) $ [€) $ _
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TMCC  TMNA
31
TMNA

TMCC TFS
TMCC

TCPR TMCC

TMNA

TMNA

TMCC
TFS

TFS
TFS
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2019 31 2020 31

$ — $ 276

$ 70 $ 601

$ 150 112

(1,257) $ (1,065)

$ 1 (100)

(2,062) $ (1,941)

$ 601 $ 1,175

$ 11 $ 97

337 344

147 220

16 3,032

2020 2019
113 171
2020 31 2019 31
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TFS
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TMCC TFS
2020 2019 31
8.4 8.5 2020 2019 31
6.8 5.4 2019 T™MCC
S.A. de C.V. 1.5
2020 2019 31
2020 ™S 2020 30
1.86 3.0
TMCC
TMCC
TMcC
TMCC TFSB TMCC TFSB
60
2020 2019 31 TMcC
22 23

TMcC

mMcC TMNA

TMCC TMNA
TMcC
TMCC TFSB TFSB T™MCC TFSB

TMCC  TFSB TMCC TMCC TFSB
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TMCC

TMCC

TFSB

TCPR

TMCC  TMNA

TMCC

TMCC

2032

85

TMNA

TMNA

TMCC

TFS

2029

10

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC

2018

ROU
2020

TMNA

2019

31

TMNA

TMCC

TMNA
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TMNA
2026
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T™MIS

99

TMNA

TMNA
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2020 2019 31

120
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2019 31
194 $ 18§ — 3 — 3 212
— 11 — — 11
— 50 — — 50
— 70 — — 70
— 162 — — 162
— 35 — — 35
— — 1 — 1
— — 39 — 39
— — 53 — 53
194 346 93 — 633
689
1,586 — — — 1,586
1,586 — — — 2,275
1,780 346 93 — 2,908
— 471 1 — 472
— 72 — — 72
— — — (483) (483)
— 543 1 (483) 61
1,780 889 94 (483) 2,969
— (622) — — (622)
— (785) — — (785)
— — — 1,381 1,381
— (1,407) — 1,381 (26)
1,780 8 (518) $ 94 $ 898 $ 2,943
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0oooood
2020 31

174 $ 2 3 — % — 3 176
— 11 — — 11
- 249 - — 249
- 601 - — 601
— 197 — — 197
- 49 — — 49
— — 1 — 1
— — 5 — 45
— — 72 — 72
174 1,109 118 — 1,401
746
1,673 — — — 1,673
1,673 — — — 2,419
1,847 1,109 118 — 3,820
— 1,410 — — 1,410
— 27 — — 27

— — — (1,386) (1,386)
— 1,437 — (1,386) 51
1,847 2,546 118 (1,386) 3,871

- (1,826) - — (1,826)

- (1,290) - — (1,290)
— _ — 3,071 3,071

— (3,116) — 3,071 (45)
1,847 $  (570) $ 18 $ 1,685 $ 3,826
2020 2019 31

167/318



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

2019 31
C )
2018 $ 3 $ 39 $ 70 s @ $ 49
— — — 29 29
—_ 1 1 — 1
16 32 48 —_ 48
— (O] (O] — (O]
(@) (15) (22) @ (29)
2019 31 $ 40 $ 53 $ o3 $ 1 $ o
$ 29 $ 2
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2019

2020

31
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ooooooo
2020 31
C )

40 53 $ 93 $ 1 $ 94
w @) (©) 18 15
@ “@ ®) — ®)
10 38 48 — 48
@ (13) 14 6 ®)
o _ — (25) (25)
46 72 $ 118 $ — $ 118

$ 18 $ 18

2020 2019 31
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2019 31
$ 53,013 $ — 3 — $ 53,247 $ 53,247
10,293 — — 10,369 10,369

4,550 — — 4,534 4,534

2,510 — — 2,554 2,554

$ 80,521 $ — $ 79,05 $ 2,313 $ 81,369
12,401 — — 12,428 12,428

2020 31

$ 56,360 $ — 3 — $ 57,303 $ 57,303
9,672 — — 9,637 9,637

4,544 — — 4,140 4,140

3,308 — — 2,811 2,811

$ 83,172 $ — $ 82,429 $ 560 $ 82,989
14,568 — — 14,608 14,608

2020 2019 31

109 148
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™IS

2018 31
$ 10,717 $ — $ — $ 10,717
7,041 — — 7,041
1,863 — 12) 1,851
1,813 — 12 1,825
— 882 — 882
140 129 12) 257
1,953 1,011 — 2,964
401 — — 401
1,028 329 — 1,357
— 425 — 425
1,429 754 — 2,183
524 257 — 781
(2,654) 25 — (2,629)
$ 3,178 $ 232 $ — $ 3,410
$ 116,942 $ 4,601 $  (1,087) $ 120,546
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2019 31

$ 11,640 $ — $ — $ 11,640

6,909 — — 6,909

2,769 — 2) 2,747

1,962 — 22 1,984

— 904 — 904

188 126 22) 292

2,150 1,030 — 3,180

372 — — 372

1,038 347 — 1,385

— 446 — 446

1,410 793 — 2,203

740 237 — 977

147 35 — 182

$ 593 $ 202 $ — $ 795

$ 112,615 $ 5,066 $  (1,165) $ 116,516
2020 31

$ 12,029 $ — $ — $ 12,029

6,820 — — 6,820

2,854 — (20) 2,834

2,355 — 20 2,375

— 933 — 933

155 187 (20) 322

2,510 1,120 — 3,630

590 — — 590

1,197 364 — 1,561

— 455 — 455

1,787 819 — 2,606

723 301 — 1,024

39 72 — 111

$ 684 $ 229 $ — $ 913

$ 121,180 $ 5,520 $  (1,145) $ 125,555
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120

2020 2019 31
84 ASU  2014-09

2020 31
2019 31
2019 31 2020 31 2.2 2.4

2020 673
2021 700 1.7

2020 2019 31 ™IS
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15

2019 31

$ 2,126 $ 2,167 $ 2,212 $ 2,189
535 547 578 575

175 176 178 182

2,836 2,890 2,968 2,946
1,766 1,662 1,717 1,764

682 702 699 664

388 526 552 518

224 226 226 228

40 56 68 128

652 808 846 874

89 67 110 106

324 348 347 366

125 112 106 103

538 527 563 575

114 281 283 299

22 87 69 4

$ 92 $ 194 $ 214 $ 295
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2020 31

$ 2,184 $ 2,197 $ 2,212 $ 2,182
589 638 661 670

190 183 171 152

2,963 3,018 3,044 3,004
1,625 1,583 1,712 1,900

697 613 755 769

641 822 577 335

229 232 231 241

118 97 57 50

988 1,151 865 626

75 61 128 326

337 358 406 460

113 115 116 111

525 534 650 897

463 617 215 @71)

104 158 34 (185)

$ 359 $ 459 $ 181 $ (86)
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{Drallars in millions)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

¥ ears ended March 31,
o Hig MR
Finanging revenoes
Operating lease 5 775 5 2694 8 B 167
Retail 2458 2238 1%
Drenler 4 711 Rl
Total financing revenues 12,029 11,640 1,717
Deeprecution on operating leises 6820 1 I 741
Interess expense 2434 2747 1.851
et fmancing revenues 13715 1934 1425
Insurnnee eamed premiums and contract revenues 431 R K2
Inwestment and other income, net 321 292 157
Met Mnancing resvenwes and other revenues 3830 3150 2084
Expenses
Provision for credit losses 5641 372 4in
Crperating and administrative 1,561 1,385 1,357
Insurance losses and loss adjusmment expenses 454 446 425
Total expenses 26 2003 2183
Income before income taxes 14024 LU T8I
Prowaseon (benefi) for ngome s 11 182 {2.629)
Met ncome 5 3 5 ™S 5 3410
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years ended Mareh 31,
2020 200% 2018
MNet ingoine £ LI ER 1 TUE % 3410
Orther comprehensive income (logs), net of tx:
Mer unmealized pams (lossesh on aviulable-for-sale
marketable secunties [net of ax {provision) benelit
of {$4), (53) and $6, respectively] 12 11 (26
Reclassification adjustment for net (gams) losses on
available-for-sale marketable securities included in
mvestment and other income, net [net of x
{benefit) provision of 50, (£3) and 516, respectively] {11 ] (25)
Onher comprehensive incorme (boss) 12 20 (54)
Comprehensive income % 915 % 515 % 3356

Refer to the sccompanying Motes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements,

&7
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars im millions exeept share data)

March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,790 % 2,198
Resiricted cash and cash cquivalents 1,739 Q85
Investments in marketable securites 380 2,908
Finance recevables, net Ti.996 To517
[nvestments in operating leases, net 36,387 37937
Oiher assets 2,823 1,981
Total assets 5 125,555 3 I L6506
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Dby 5 97740 S 92922
Deferred income nxes 5458 5452
Onher habilines 7554 4,564
Total labalitses 111,082 102,938
Commitments and contingencies {Refer o Note 9)
Shareholder™s equity:
Capital siock, no par value {100,000 shares authorueed, 91,500 issued

and outstanding) at March 31, 2020 and 2019 o5 s
Auddinional pard-in capatal i i
Accumulated other comprehensive mcome 15 k|
Retaimned enmings 13,571 12,658
Total shureholder's equity 14,503 13,578
Total labalitses and shareholder's equity 5 1255585 § 116,516

Thee Following mble presents de assets and babalimes of our consolidated vanable mterest entibes ( Refer 1o Mo 8,

March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

ASSETS

Finance receivables, net 5 12375 § 11,075
Inwestments in operating leases, net 5,586 5,307
Other nssets 131 192
Total assels 5 18092 % 16,574
LIABILITIES

Debe 5 14568 5 12,401
Other habilities 12 12
Total liabalites § 14580 % 12,413

Refer to the secompanying MNotes to Conseliduted Financial Stutements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
(Drallars in millions)

Aceumulated
Addrianal ather
Capital poid-in comprehensive  Betamed
stock capital income {loss)  earmings Tatal
Balance at March 31, 2017 5 915 5 25 25 § B582 § 95M
Met income . - . jann ER AL
Orher comprehensive loss, net of mx . - [54) . {34
Balance at March 31, 2008 5 915 % zZ 5 {29y 5 11,992 § 12880
Cumulative-eiTect of change in accounting pohicy . - 12 {122) (1)
Met income - - - 795 795
Oiher comprebensive income, net of - - 20 - 20
Dividends, net of tax - - - {7} M
Balance at March 31, 2009 ] 915 § Fa 3 85 12658 § 1357
Mer income - - - 913 a13
Other comprehensive income, net of tx - 12 - 12
Balance &t March 31, 2020 ] 915 5 2 % 15 & 13,571 § 14303

Refer to the accompanying Nates to Consoldared Financial Statements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{Drallars in millions)

Years conded March 31,
2000 2019 2018
Cash Mows from operitng activilaes:
Mel incomie £ 913 % 58 340
Adpustments 1o reconcile nel income to net cash provaded by operating
aclivilics:
Dhepreciation and amortization 6430 7023 713
Recogninon of deferred income {2.485) 2346} [EELILE]
Provigion for eredin losses 5K an 40l
Amoriisaleon of deferred cosis T 617 (Ui
Foreign cusrency and other adpustments 1o the carryvimg value af debi,
net (515) (938} 1.502
Met gaans from investments m murkelable secusibics (47) (2} (413
el change im:
Denvative asseis 10 - (L]
Oher assces and aogrocd mberest (482 [E1] {117)
Dreferred incomse lones 1 156 (2578)
Derivative hialalitics 19 b1} (41
Other Tiabilines 122 a4 1
el cash provaded by operating activities 5T 4035 K335
Cash flews from imvesting activities:
Purchase of invesimens in marketable socurities (2.3 (1,251} {7,137)
Prococds from sales of imvestments in markelahle secuntics 345 1,740 1376
Proscoeds From maturties of investments in marketable securities 1,206 2457 5580
Acquisition of fnance rocaivables (20378} [RERE Y] (25713
Collection of finance recetvables 25 608 W 0Er 24,1000
et change m wholesale and cerfam working capital receivables 2) (L] LS
Acquisition of myvestments m operating leases (15.350) 16,06 ) (16,575)
Digposals of mvestmenis in operating leasss 11.775 11,395 9821
Lomg term loans to alTilintes [LLLIE (560 -
Paymsenis on long teem loans from afTiluales ral 36 -
Wel change in financing support provided 10 alliliates - - 755
b, 1 (511 [LEN] (79}
Nel cash used im invesimg aciivilics {R.T5TH {1,004} i7 4545
Cash flows from finencing activitics:
Proceeds from issuance of deht 26,847 21,153 21,768
Paymeznis on debs (23.375) 123624 ) TIK14)
Wt change in commercial paper 1. 861 (2,022) sl
Lonn frem alTiliaie ERLLY - -
el ehange in financing support provided by affilistes 16y (2} 5
Dividend paid (1) - =
Net eash provided by (used i) linancing activities B339 (4495} (13771
el inerease (decrense) in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and
cash equivalenis 5346 [1,376) 15261
Cash and cash equivalents and resinicied cash and cash equivalenis al the
beginning of the persod 3183 4,750 5,285
Cash and cash equivalents and resincted cash and cash equivalenis al the end
ol the periad 5 529§ LIE3 % 4759
Supplemenial disclosnes:
Interesd |1u|d. nel L 568 200 5 1,722
Income taxes paid, net 5 09 5 42 % ]

Refer to the accompanying Notes 1o Conselidated Financinl Stements
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

obe | — Basis of Fresenia
Nutwre of Operations
Toyota Motor Credit Corporation {TMCC™) 15 a whollv-owned subsediary of Tovola Finnncial Services Imemational
Corpogateen (“TFSIC"), a Califormma corpesation, which 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tovot Financial Services
Corporation [~ TFSCT), a Japanese corporation. TFSC, n tum, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Motor
Carporateon (“TMC), a Japainese corporation.  TFSC manages TMO' 2 worldvwade Ginancial services
operations. References herein to the “Company”™, “we™, “our”, and “us” denote TMCOC and its consolidared
subsidiaries, TMOC is marketed wnder the brands of Toyotn Financial Services and Lexus Financinl Services,

We provide o variety of finance and insurance products to authonzed Tovots and Lexus dealers or dealer groups and, o a
lesser extent, other domestic and impont franchise dealers (collectively referred o as “dealers”) and their customens in the
United States of Amersea (excluding Hawaith (the “U.5.7) and Puerto Rico. Our business is substantially dependent upon
the sale of Tovorn and Lexus vehicles

Chr products fall pomanly e the following catepones:

. Fimgnee = We acquire retul instaliment sales comracts from dealers in the US, and Puero Rico (“retal
contracts™ ) and leasing contracts accounted for as operating leases {“lease contracts™) from dealers in the
L5, We collectively refer to our retail and lease contracts as the “consumer portfolio ™ We also provide
dealer Anancing, including wholesale fnoncing, warking capital loans, revolving lines of credit and real
estate financing to dealers in the LS. and Pueno Rico, We collectively refer to our dealer finoncing
portfolio as the “dealer partfolin ™

. Tnsurance - Through Toyota Maotor Insurance Services, Inc., a whally-owned subsidiary, and its insurance
company subsidinnes (collectively referred to os “TMIS™), we provide marketing, underamting, and claims
administration for vehicle and payment protection products sold by dealers in the LS. Our vehicle and
payment protection products include vehicle service agreements, guarantesd nuo protechion agreements,
prepaid maintenance agreements, @xcess wear and use agreements, tire and wheel protection agreements, key
replacement prosection, and used vehicle limited samanty agreements. TMIS also provides coverage and
related admnistrative services to certain of our affiliaces in the U5, Although the vehicle and payment
protection products are generally nol regulated as insurance products, for ease of reference we collecuvely
refer to the group of products provided by TMIS herein as “insurance products.”

Our fnance operations are located in the U5, and Poerto Rico with enrming wssets principally sourced through Tovols
and Lexus dealers. As of March 31, 2020, approcimately 23 percent of retal and lease contracts were concentrated in
Cabforma, |1 percent in Texis, 7 percent m New York, and 5 percent i New Jersey. Our msurance operations are
located i the LS. As of March 31, 2020, approxunately 25 percent of insurance policies and contracis were
concentratesd i Califorma, 6 percent i MNew York, snd 5 percent i Marylangd, New Jersey, and Vg,
respectively. Any material adverse changes to the economies or applicable lnws in these states could have an adverse
effect an our iinancial condition and results of operations

Ehhver Marsers

O April 16, 2009, we announced that we wall restructune our field operations over the nest two vears 0 better serve our
denler parmers by strenmiining our field office structure into three regional locations and imvesting in new

techoology, This restructure 15 expected o be completed in lscal year 2021 and costs associated with this restruciure are
not expected to be sipmificant.

Ag ol April 1, 2020, TMCOC began providing private label linancial services to third-party aubomotive and moldlity
companics commeneing with the provision of services to Mazda Motor of Amenca, Ing, (“Mazda™). We currently offer
exclusive private label automsative retail, lease, and dealer financing products and services markered under the brand
Mazda Financial Services to Mazda cussomers and dealers in the United States. TMUC s agreement with Mazda is for an
initial term of approximately five vears. 'We imend 1o leverage our existing processes and personnel 1o service the newly
onipinated assets, and we expect to make certamn technology investments 1o support the Mazda program. TMCC will nos
accpuuire any existing Marda assers or linhilities pursuant to the agreement and we do not expect launch costs o be
sigmificant through fiscal vear 2021

T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

vote | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accow
Fasiz of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
Our accounting and fimancial reporing policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of Amernca (LS, GAAP"), Related party ransactions presented in the Consolidated Financial Siatements are dusclosed
in Mote 12 = Related Party Transactions.

The consolidated Mancial satements include the nocounts of TMOC, 113 wholly=owned subsadianes and all vanoable
imevest entitses (“YIE™) of which we are the primary beneficiary. All intereompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated

Use aof Estimuies

Thse preparation of linancial slatements in conformaty with TS, GAAP requires managerment 1o make estimates and
assumgrions that aftect the reported anwounts of assets and labalities and the disclosure of contingent assets and labilines
at the date of the Anancial staternems and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

penod. Because of iberent uncertainty invelved in making estimates, actual results could differ from those estimstes ol
asswmgiions, The acoounting estunsies that are most mpartant (o our business are the scoumulated depreciation related
10 our investments in operating leases and the allowance for credit losses.

Nignificant Acconnting Policies
Onur significant accounting policies are found in the respective Note for which the policy 15 applicable.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

vote | — Basis of Fresentation and Sk
Recently Adopted Accownting Culdanee
On April 1, 2019, we adopied the following new accounting standards:

Fonses

‘We adopted Accounting Swandards Update ("ASUT) 2006-02, Leases (Topic 8420 ("ASU 2016-027), along with the
subsequently ssued guidance amending and clarifying varous aspects of the new leate guidance, using the modified
retrospective method. In accordance with that method, the comparative pertod s information has not been restated and
contimees to be reporied under the lease accounting guidance in effect for that penod, 'We also elecied 1o apply the
package of prachical expedients perminied under the tramsinon guidance of the new standard which allowed ws to nos
ieaisess our histonical lease classificaton, matial dhrect costs, and whether o ol cotitracts entésed into prior 1o adoption
are or comain leases. As a lessor, the adoption of ASU 20016-02, did not have a significant umpact on our financial
stmtements, As i hessee, the adoption of ASU 2016-02 added nght-of-use (“ROU™) assets of 5115 million and operating
lease liabilitees of $122 million, which are included in Other assets, and in Other liabiliies, respectively, inour
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The adoption of this new guidance did not impact our Consolidated Siatement of Incame
and did not result in a cumulative-ciTect adjustment to opening retained eamings.

Refer to Note 4 — lnvestments i Opensting Leases, Net and Note % — Compsitmgns and Contingencies for sddinonal
information

thther Recently Adepted Standards

We ndopted ASU 200 7-08, Receivables - Nunrgfmdable Fees and Other Costs, which requires certun premiums on
callable deby securiies o be smorized o the earliest call date. The adopteon of this guwdance did o1 have a materal
impact on owr coneolidaied financinl siatements and related desclosures.

We adopted ASU 2007-12, Devivatives and Hedging (Topic 8151 Torgered Improvemenits o Accomnting for Hedging
Activitiex, The sdoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our consobdaled fmancial statements and relasd
disclosures as we no longer have hedge sccouming denvabives.

[is the second quarter of fiscal 2020, we adopted ASU 200907, Califfcution Lindates i Securiiies and Exclenige
Canrrission (“SEC") Sections — Amendarents to SEC Paragraphs Pursicant to SEC Final Bide Reloases No, 33-10532,
“Ihivloenre Update amd Simplification, ™ amd Nos. 33 J0230 anad 3300442, " Investment Comprny Reporting
Modernizetion, ™ and Miscelloneous Updares. This guadance was effective upon issuance in July 20019 and aligns the
wuidunce m vanous SEC sections (o the Finoncial Accountimg Standords Bonrd (“FASB™) Accounting Stansdard
Codification with the requirements of centain already effective SEC final rules. While most of the amendments. in this
release eluminate cutdmed or duphcntive disclosure requirensents, the foml mile release amends. the mtenim financial
sintement requirements to include o reconciliation of changes im sharcholder®s equity for each perniod for which an income
stutement 05 regquared o be filed, We have disclosed the required informanon in the Consolidated Sttemens of
Shareholder’s Equity. The other eliminanions or amendments did not have a material impact onour consolidased
fimancial staterments and related disclosures.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

.-vic'rmmlﬂnx Crniderce Ixined Bt Yol Yer Adu.u'm-d'

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASL 20016-13, Financial fnstrmments — Crodis Losses (Topic 3260 Measurement of Credii
Loivey an Fingneial Insseuorents, This gudance miroduces a new impaimsent model based on expecied losses raiher than
incurred losses for certain types of financial instruments. 11 also modifies the impainment model for available-for-sale
dlebt securaties and provides fod a simplified sccounting model for purchnsed financal astets wath credit detenoration
singe their origination. The FASB subsequently issued guidance amending and clarifying aspects of the new impairment
madel. This ASL and the related amendmems are effective for us on Apeil 1 20200 Upon adoption of the guidanee on
April 1, 2020, based on our current loan portfolio atributes and forecasts of future economic conditions, we cstimate an
increase inour allowance for credit lokees on finonce receivables of approximately 5292 million and a corresponding
reduction o our opening retained earmings, net of income taxes, Additionally, the adoption of this ASL and the related
amendments will not have a material impact 1 oor available-for-sale deb secunties ponfalio,

In Awpust 2018, the FASB issued ASL 201813, Fair Valne Measuremen (Topie 8200, which modifies disclosune
requirements related to fair value measurement, This ASL is effective for us on April 1, 2020, The adoption of this
guidance wall not have a materin] impact on our consolidated finoncial statements and related disclosures,

In Aupust 2018, the FASE issued ASU 2018-15, Iniangibles  Croodwill and (wiver Tivernal-Ulse Saftware, which aligns
the accounting for costs ineurmed to implement a cloud computing armngement that is a service amangement with the
guidance on capitalizing costs associated with developing or obaining intemal-use software. This ASL is effective for us
on Apal 1, 2020, The ndopmon of this guidance wall not have a matenal impact on our consolidated fimanen smrements
and relared disclosures,

In October 2008, the FASD issued ASL 2008-17, Convalidation (Topic 8110, which requires indirect imterests held
through refated pames in common control srrengements 1o be considered on a propomional basis for determining whether
fees pund to decision makers and service providers ane vanable mterests, This ASL 15 effective for us on Apnl 1,

2021, The adoption of this guidance will not have a materal impact on our consolidated Nnancial siatements and related
disclosures.

In Agpnil 2019, the FASB ssued ASLU 2019-04, Codificarion fmprovemenis fo Togric 326, Financiol Insieuments—Creoit
Lonses, Topie 815, Derfvarives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial fnstrmments, The applicable provisions of this
ASU are effective for us on April 1, 2020, The adoption of puidance related to Topic 815, Denvatives and Hedgimge, am:l
Topic 825, Fuancaal Instruments, wall not have a matenal oripact on our consalidated fmncial st Chir alophion
status for Topwe 326, Financial Instrumems—Credit Losses 1s discussed above.

I March 2020, the FASB wssuwed ASLU 2020-04, Reference Nore Reform (lopic 8480 Facifitaron of e Effeces of
Refevence Rate Reform on Finaroial Reporting, which provides temporary opiional guidance io ease the poiential burden
w accounting for reference rate reforme The new gusdance provides optional expedients and exceptions for apglyving
penerally sccepted accounting principles 1o transactions affected by reference rate seform if comain critena ane

met. Entites oy apply the provisiens of te new standard as of the begimmng of the reporting period when the election
is made. The provisions of this updnte are available until December 31, 2022, when the reference e replacement
activity is expected to have completed. We are cumrently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidared
financial statements and reloted disclosures.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

vote 2 — Cash and h E
Cashr amd caxh eguivialents

Cash and cash ecquivalents represent highly iquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of
acoisition and may include money market instruments, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, LS. govemment and
agency obligations, or similar instruments.

Resteicted casl amd coxl equivelents

Resinicted cash and cash equivalents mclude customer collections on securinzed receivables o be distiibuted 10 myvestors
as payiments on the related secured notes and loans payable, which are primanly related 1o secuntization

trusts. Kestncied cash equivalems may also contain proceeds from certain debt isssances for which the use of the cash is
restrcted,

Tnvestmenis in marketoble secnrifies
Imvestrnents in marketahle securities consist of debt secunities and equity investiments.

Debe securines are designated as available-for-sale (“AF5") and are recorded at fair value sith unrealized gains or losses
inchuded in accurmulated other comprehensive incoms (" ACCT), net of applicable taxes. An unrealized loss exists when

the current fair value of an individual secunty 15 less than its amortized cost basis. We comduct pentodic reviews of AFS

debt securties 1o determine whether the loss is deemed o be other-than-lemporary,

If an other-than-temporery impament (COTTI7) loss 15 deemed 1o exist, we first determime whether we have the intent 1o
sell the debt security or it is more likely than not thar we will be required o sell the debi security before recovery of is
amortized cost basis. 1 so, the cost basis of the secunty 15 wiitten down te fair valee and the loss is reflected in
Investment and other income, net in our Consolidsted Statements of Income, 11 we do not have the intent to sall nor is it
mene hikely than ned that we wall be required to sell, the credit boss componem of the OTTI losses 15 recogmzed in
Investrment and other income, et in our Consolidated Statements of [ncome, while the remaimder of the loss is recopmized
m ACCL The credit loss component s identified as the portion of the amorzed cost of the secunty ma expected (o be
collecied over the remaming tenm as projected using a cash flow analysis for dedd securities.

All equity mvestments are recorded at far value with changes in s valie icluded o livestinent ansd ather income, nel
inouer Consolidated Siatements of Income. Realized gains and losses from sales of equity investments are determimed
usang the st m first out nsethod and are mcluded i lnvestment and other meome. nel within our Consolidated
Statemenis of Income.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{ Dollars m mallions)

[nvestrnents in marketable secuntes consisted of the followmg:

Avaslable-for-sale debt securitics:
LS. government and agency obligations
Municipal debr securities
Cenificates of deposit
Commeraal paper
Corporate debt securities
Mongage-backed secunties:
.S, government apency
Mon-agency residenbal
Mon-agency commercinl
Asset-backed securities
Total available-for-sale debt secunities
Equity investments
Toual investments in marketable securines

Available-for-gale debi securities:
LS. governmens and agency obligations
Municipal debr securities
Ceruficates of deposit
Coammercial paper
Corporate debt secuntwes
Mongage-backed secunties:

115, government agency
MNon-agency residential
Mon-agency commercinl
Asset-backed securites
Total available-for-sale debt securities

Equity investmenis
Total investments in markeiable secunies

March 31, 2020
Amvortueed Unrealized Umrealized Fuir
cosl gans losses value
5 160 § 16 § - 5 1 76
9 2 - Ll
250 ; i 249
604 - (3 0]
5.3 10 [ 197
47 ) - A4
1 - - I
a7 . i2) 45
75 . i3) 72
5 1381 § ELI [RLLRS 1,401

2419

§ 3820

March 31, 2019

Amoriized Linrealized Unrenfzed Fmr

cost s lomses valusg
5 213 8 2 5 (315 I12
] 2 - 1
0 - - ]
70 . L T
160 3 n 162
15 - - kLT
I - - i
ag a a L)
52 1 - 53
5 629 5 E 5 (415 633
275
5 208

A pontion of ouf equily invesiments are investments in funds that are privarely placed and managed by an open-end
investment mansgement company (the “Trust"), 1Fwe elect to redeem shares, the Trust wall nommally redeem all shares
for cash, bat may, in unusual cireumstances, redeem amounts exceeding the lesser of 5250 thousand or | percent of the
Trust’s asset value by payment in kind of securities held by the respective fund dunng any 90-day penod,

‘We also invest in actively traded open-end mutual funds, Redemptions are subject 1o normal terms and conditons as

described in euch fund s prospecius,

T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

Pierealized Lossey evr Secrerinies

Available-for-sale debt secuntes in a contmuous loss position for less than owelve months and greater than rwelve
meonths were not significant as of March 31, 2020 and 2019,

Crafing ard Losses onr Securifies

The fallowing table represents paing and losses on our imvestments in marketable securities presented i oor Consolidated

Statements of Income:
Yenrs endied March 31,

2020 019 2018
Avaluble-for-sale debt securines:
Realized gains (losses) ] 9 5 [12) & 4]
Other-than-temporary impaimment 5 (B} S = 5 =
Euguiny invesimenis:
Unrealized gains recogmzed 5 4] s 14
Realized pains on soles 8 58 -

Comtractual Mafurittes

Thee amsortreed cost and farr value by contractual maturitses of available-for-sale debt seconties are sumnazed in the
following table. Acrual maturities may differ from contracteal maturitics because certain borrowers have the right to call
or prepay certain obligntions,

Margh 31, 2020

Amorized cost Fair value

Available-for-sale debt securities:

[Chie within | vear 5 378 %5 874

Due after 1 yeasr through 5 vears 128 132

e afeer 5 years through 10 vears 115 123

Due afier 10 vears a0 105

Momgage-backed and asset-backed securites! 170 167
Total 5 13381 5 1,401

I Mosmgage-backed and ssel-backed securities are shown separately from aiber maingy groupings as ithese socunises have mubiphe
maiarity dales.

T7
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)
Note 3 Fi Recehvables N
Finange reeewvables, net comsist of the retml loan and the dealer products portfolo segments, winch includes acered
interest and deferred fiees and costs, net of the allowance for credit losses and deferred income. Finance receivables, net
also mcludes secuntized retwl receivables, which represent retml recervables that have been sold for legal purposes o
securitization trusts but continue to be included i our consolidated financial statements, as discussed further in Note 8 -
Wariable Imerest Entites. Cash flows from these secuntized retail recervables are available only for the repayment of
debi isswed by these trusts and other obligations arising from the secuntization wansactions. They are not available for
payment of our other obligations ar 1o satisfy claims of our other creditors,

Finanee reccivables are classificd as held-for-investment if the Company has the intent and ability 1o hold the receivables
for the foreseeable future or until matunty or payoff. As of March 31, 2020 and 2009, all finance recemvables were
classified as held-for-investment.

Revenues associsted with retm] and dealer financing are recogmired 50 as 10 approximate a constant effective yield over
the contract term. Incremental direct fees and costs mcumed m connecnon wath the ncquisition of retml contracts and
dealer financing receivables, including incennive and rate participarion payments made 1o dealers, are capitalized and
amrtized 5o as o approxmate o constant effective viekd over the term of the relnted contracts. Payments received on
subvention and other consumer mcentives are deferred and recoumzed 10 approximate a consiant effective vield over the
term of the related controcts.

The accrual of revenue i discontinuad at the ime a retail receivable 15 determined to be uncollectible. These finance
recesvables may be restored to accrual states when futare payments are reasonably assured. For retail loan finance
recervables i non-accrual stanes, subsequent financing revenue is recognized only o0 the extent a payment i
recesved. Pavments are applied first to outstanding mterest and then to the unpaid princrpal balance.

Imypaired receivables in the dealer products pomfiolio segment are placed on nonacersal stats if full payment of principal
or mterest 15 0 doubt, or when principal or mterest 15 90 days or more past due. Interest accrued, but not collected at the
dare a dealer [inancing receivable is placed on nonaccrual status, 15 reversed against interest income, In addinon, the
amsrtization of net defermed fees 15 suspended. Interest meome on nonscerun] dealer financing recevaldes s recoymined
odtly o thie extent it is received in cash. Dealer financing receivables are restored to accrual stats only when imierest and
prinsrpal paviments are brought current and future pavisents are reasonably assured,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

MNote 3 — Finance Receivables, Net {Continued
Finange recenvables, net consisted of the following:

March 31, March 31,
2020 pol

Retail receivables 5 44414 5§ 42621

Securitized retail receivables 12,674 11,318

[ealer financing 17873 17,656

T Gl 71,635

Deferred ongination costs 90 695
Dieferred income {1,128} {1.304)

Allowance for credin losses

Retnil aind secuntuzed retml recervables [456) (304}
Dealer financing (241 (195}
Total allowance for credin losses {727} (499}

Finance recervables, net 5 L 70517

Contractual maturiies on refail recesvables and dealer linancing are as follows:

Contractual maturties

Yewrs emding March 31, Retail recevibles Dieaaler financing

2021 b 14,437 % 13267
2022 13,358 1476
20213 11,780 376
2024 9,103 676
2025 5,696 454
Thereafter 2714 1.124
Total £ S7088 % 17873

A portion of our inonce recenvables has histoncally seiled pooe w conractual matunty, Contractunl matunies slown
above should not be considered mdicative of funere cash collections
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Note 3 — Finance Recevables, Net {Continued]
Creudis (Puality fdicators

We are exposed o credit nisk on our finance receivables, Credin nisk is the nsk of loss ansing from the failure of
custommiers of denlers o meel the lenns of their comracts with us or otherwise [l o perform as agresd,

Retail Loan Porffdio Segment

The retail loan portfolio segment consists of one class of finance receivables. While we use various credit quality metrics
to develop our allowance for credit bysses on the retual loan portfolio segment, we primanly utilize the aging of the
inchvidual accounts w monnes the credst quality of these finance receivables, Based on our expenience, the payment
status of borrowers 15 the strongest ndicator of the credin quality of the underlying receivables, Payment status also
imfipacts charge-ofls.

Individual bormewer accounts within the retail loan portfolio segment are segregated o aging categories based on the
mumber of days outstanding, The aging for each class of finance receivables 15 updated monthly.
Deater Products Povifotio Segament

Thee dealer products ponfolio segment consisis of three classes of finance receivables; wholesale, real estane and working
cagaeal. All leans eutstanding for an indivedual dealer or dealer group, which includes affiliated enntics. are aggregated
and evalumed collectively by dealer or dealer group.  Thas reflects the imerconnecied namure of financing provided 1o our
inchveadunl dealer and dealer group customers, and their sffiliated entities

When assessing the credit qualiny of the finance receivables within the dealer products portfolio segment, we segregate
the finance receivables account balances into four categones representing distmct credit quality mdicators hased on
intermal risk assessments. The antemal nisk assessments for all finance receivables within the dealer producis portiolio
segment are updated on a monthly basis.

The four credit quality indicators are:
. Performing - Account nod classified as erther Credit Waech, At Risk or Default;
. Credit Warch - Account designated for elevated artention;

. At Risk - Accoumt where there s an increased likelibood that default may exist based on qualiative and
quantitative factors; and

. Default - Account is nat currently meeting contractual oblipations ar we have tempormnly waved certain
contractual requirements

Thee tables helow present each credin quality mdicator by class of finnnce receivables;

Retml loan
March 31, Muarch 31,
2020 2019
Ayring of finance receivables:
Current 5 56,004 8 53,047
30-59 days past due 7 657
60-39 davs past dug 203 162
90 dnys or grenter past due 104 73
Tostal 5 STOBE & 53,939
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Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Net (Continued)

Whaolesale Renl estate Working capital
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Credit quality indicators:

Performing 5 8730 § 9155 § 1974 8§ 4019 § 3,132 § 2448

Credit Watch L 1127 LF ] 54 195 T

At Rask a2 152 55 B4 " 63

Default r¥ & 23 14 - Ll
Total 5 S8 10,440 5 4628 5 4671 § 34T 5 2,585

Pust Due Finance Recetvables by Class

Substantially all fimance recervables do nos involve recourse fo the dealer in the event of customer defanlt. France
receivahles include contracts in bankrupecy and contraces greater than 120 days past due, which are recorded at the fair
value of collateral less estimated costs 1o sell. Contracts for which vehicles have been repossessed are excluded

The following tahles summarize the aging of finance receivables by class:

March 31, 2020

90 Days or
30 - 50 6k - B 00 Days or preater past

Days Days grepter Totnl Past Teanl Finance  due and

pasidue  pasidue  past due due Current_receivables nocnuing
Betail loan 5 717 5 3 5 14 5 1024 5 56004 5 57088 35 LE
Wholesnle = e 5 - 9E2G QA6 -
Rial estate - - 1 1 4,627 4,628 -
Waorking capaal - - - - 34192 1419 -
Total 5 717 5 W3 % 105 % 1035 § 73936 % 74961 S Gl

March 31, 2019

90 Davs or
-5 60-89 90 Daysor freater post

[ays [days preater Total Past Total Finance  cug ad

pasi due past due past due due Current_receivables Accnuing
Retail lean 5 657 § 162 5 735 B9 5 S3MMT 3§ 53,939 3 47
Wholesale - - 1 I 13,439 10,440 -
Real estate - - - - 4671 4,671 -
Waorking eapatal - - 4 4 2581 1585 -
Total ] 65T § 162 5 785 BO7 5 TOLTIE § 71,635 § 47
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Nope 3 — Finanes Beceivables, Yot {Contined)
Impaired Finanee Receivabies

A finance receivable s considered impaired when, based oo current information and events, it 15 probable thas we will be
unable 1o collect all amwoums due according 1o the 1erms of the contract. Factess such as payment history, compliance
with terms and conditions of the underlying loan agreement and other subjective factors related o the financial stabiliny
of the baower aie consadered when determinng whether a finaice receivalble i impaired

The following table summarizes the information related 1o our inpaired loans by class of finance receivables:

Imipasred Individially evaluared
finance receivables allpwance
March 31, Mlarch 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019

[mipaired account balances individually evaluated for onpamment with an

allpwance:

Whalesile £ 4 % 161 & 18 % 25
Real estate T 93 ? 1]
Working capatal 92 67 18 1]
Total 5 268 5 k] - 65 5 a9

Lmepaired account balances indwidually evaluated for imparrment without an allowance:

Whalesale % 9 % 130
Real estate 148 152
Waorking capital 1% 2
Toal 5 o ) I 4 oz

limpaired accousit balances agprepated and eviluated For impairment:

Retail loan 5 253 5 3
Tonal imparred account balances:

Retail loan 3 %3 % 231
Wholesale 197 29
Real estate .|| 145
‘Working capital 11 37
Total 5 TRl % 554

The primary source of interest mcome recognized on the loans i the @ble above 1 from performing woubled del
restructurings. Interest income on impaired finance recemvables and interest income recognized using a cash-bsis method
of accounting during fiscal 2020 and 2019 were not significant. As of March 31, 2020 and 2009, the impaired finance
recesvables balance for nocounts in the denler products portfolio segment that were on nonncerual stntus was S288 million
and 5329 millson, respectively, and there were no charge-offs against the allowance for credit losses for these finanee
recesvnbles, Therefore, the impaired finance recenvables balonce i equal to the unpaid principal kalance

As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, impaired finance receivables in the retail loan portfolio segmem recorded at the fair
salue of the collateral less esnmmted selling coxis were not sigmificant and therefore excluded from the table above, Refer
to Mate 5 - Allowance for Credit Losses for detnils nelated to the retan] loan portfolio segment’s rmpaired account
halances which are aggregated and evaheated for impaimment when determaning the allowance for credit losses
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Mote X — Finance Beoeivables, Net {Continued |
Tranelieed Dby Restructurdog

A mroubled del restruchuring occurs when a finance receivable s modified through a concession 1o a borrower
experiencing financial difficuliv. A finance receivable mosdified under o troablad dely restructurmg 1s considered to be
impaired. In sddition, roubled deb restucturings inclusde fimance recesvables for which the customer has fled for
bankruptey protection. For such finunce receivables, we no longer have the ability 1o madhly the terms of the agreement
without the approval of the bankrupicy count and the court may impose term modificanons that we are obligated 1o
ACCLEN.

For accounts not under bankrupdey prodection, the amount of fimance receivables modified as o troubled debt restructuring
duning fiscal 2020 and 2019 was pot significam for each class of fuance receivables. Troubled debe restruciunings for
accounts pot under bankruptcy protection within the retail loan class of finance recervables are compnsed exclusively of
contmct tenm extesions that reduce the momhly pavoent due from the customer, For the thiee classes of finance
receivables within the dealer products portfolio segment, roubled debe restructunings include coniract term extensions,
inferest rate adjustments, warvers of loan covenants, or aiy combination of the three. Troubbed debt restructunings of
aceounts not under bankruptcy protestion did not include forgiveness of principal or mterest rate adpstments duning
fecal 2020 and 2019,

We consader finance receivables wnder bankrupicy profection within the retail loan class to be trovbled debt restructunmgs
as of the dote we receive notice of a customer filing for bankruptey protection, regardless of the ultimate outcome of the
bankruptey proceedings. The bankrupscy court may impose madifications as part of the proceedings, mcladmg interest
rate adjusrments and forgiveness of pincipal. For fiscal 2020 and 2009, the financial impact of iroubled debt
restructunmygs related © finonce recesvables under bankruptey protecton was not sigmificant to our Consobidated
Srtements of Income and Consolidaed Balance Sheets,

We have offered several progrms to provede relief o customers and dealers durmg the COVID-19 pandermc. These
programs, which were broadly available 1o our customers and dealers, included payment extensions and deferrals. We
concluded that these programs did not meet troubled debt restructnng entera.
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Noted—I in 0 ik N

In conpunction with the Apnl 1, 2009 adopnon of ASL! 2016-02 as descrbed m Note | - Basis of Presentation and
Significam Accounting Policies, we updated our accounting policies and disclosures below.

Livestrents in opersting lenses, net primanly consasts of vehicle lease contracts acquired froan dealers, Generally, lessess
have the ability 1o extend their lease ieom in six month increments wp to a total of 12 months from the ongingl lease
iiaturity date. A lense can be terniinated at any time by satisfving the obligations under e lease contract. Early
termination programs may be occasionally offered o cligible lessecs. At the ond of the lease, the customer has the option
10 buy the leaged vehicle o return the vehicle o the dealer

Secunitized mvestments in operating leases represent beneficial inierests ina pool of certain vehicle leases that have been
sold For legal purposes 1o securitization tsis but continue 1o be included in our consolidaed fnancial statensents as
discussed further in Note 8 - Vanable Interest Entines. Cash flows from these securitized investments in operating leases
are available only for the repavment of debt issued by these trasis and other obligations arising from the secuntization
transactions. They are not avmiable for payment of our other obhigations or 1o satisfy claims of our other creditors.

Ohperating bedde revenes are recopnned on a steapghit-line basis over the tenm of the lease, We have made an accounting
pobicy election to exclude from the consideration m the contract, and from vanable payments not mcluded n the
consideration in the contract, sales and other raxes assessed by a governmental authorty thar are both imposed on and
concurrent with o specific lease revenue-producing tmansaction and collected from customers, Deferred fees and costs,
inchuding incentive payments made to dealers and acquisition fees collected from customers, and payments received on
affiliate sponsored subvention and other incentive programs are capitalized or deferred and amortized on a seraighs-line
basis over the contract term,  The accrual of revenue on investments in operating leases s discontimued at the time an
account 15 determmed io be uncollechible and subsequent revenue is recognized only 1o the extent o payment is

received. Operating leases may be restored 10 accrual statas when future paymenis are reasonably assured.

Vehicle Lease Rexidual Values

Coneracrual residual values of vehicle lease contracis are estimated ai lease inception by examining external industry daga,
the anticipated Toyot and Lexus product pipelme and our own expenence. Factors considered in this evaluation inclsde,
macroeconomic forecasts, new vehicle pricing, new vehicle incentive programs, new vehicle sales, vehicle features and
specifications, the mis and level of used vehicle supply, the level of cumment wsed vehicle values, and fuel poces. We are
exposed 10 a nsk of loss o the extent the customer returns the vehicle and the value of the vehicle is lower than the
residunl value estomated at sceplion of the lease and iF the uniber of refumed vehcles i3 ligler than anticrpated.

Depreciation on operating leases is recognized using the siraight-line method over the lease term. The depreciable basis
15 the onginal acquisition cost of the vehicle less the estomated ressdual value of the vehicle at the end of the lease

term, On g quarterly basis, we review the estimated end-of-term market values and retum rates ol leased vehicles o
assess the appropruteness of the carrving vahees al lease-end, Factors affecting the estmmited end-of=tenm market value
are similar to those considered i the evaluation of residual values a1 lease inception disossed above.  Adjustments to
deprecution expense to reflect revised estimates of expected muarket values at lepse termanation and revised return mtes
are recorded prospectively on a straighi-line basis over the remnining lease term.

We use various channels to sell vehicles returmed at lease-end. Upon disposition, the difference between the net boak
value of the lease and the procesds received from the disposition of the asset, including any insurance proceeds is
recorded as an adjustment 1o Depreciation on aperating bses

We evaluate our invesiment in operatimg beases portfolio for potenteal impmirment when we determine a triggering event
has occurred. When a triggering event has occurred, we perform a test of recoverahility by comparing the expected
undiscoumted future cosh fows (incleding expected residual values) over the remaining lease terms to the camying value
of the aaset group. 17 the 1est of recoverability identifies a possible impairment, the asset group’s fair valee 15 measured i
accordance with the fair value measurement framework. An mmpamment charge would be recogmized for the amount by
which the carmying value of the asset group exceeds its esnmated fair value and would be recorded i our Conalidated
Statements of Income. As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, there was no impainment in our investment m operating leases
porifolio.
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N S in0 i 1 Net (Conlinued
[nvestrnents i epentng leases, net consisted of the following:

March 31, Muarch 31,
2020 2019

Inwestments in operating leascs 5 40698 5 42,8649
Securitized mvestments i operating leases 7940 7.532

4R 638 50,40
Drelermed cnigination (fees) and costs, net (223) (225}
Deferred income (1.562) (2,085}
Accumulated depreciation (2.9T76) (10,061 )
Allowance for credit losses () (03]
lnwestments i operating leases, mel 5 36387 0§ 37,927

Future minimum rentals on mvestrments in operanng leases are as follows:

Furuare mimimun

Years endmg March 31, rentals on operatimg beases

2021 3 5981
022 Tz
2023 1,339
2024 106
2025 L
Thereafrer -
Total 5 11,203

A pomion of our operating lease contracts has historically terminated prior 1o matunty. Fumre manimum rentals shown

above should not be considered mdicative of funsre cash collections

B3
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Note § — Allowance for Credit Losses
Woe mamtam an allowance for credit losses 1o cover probable and estimable losses incurred on our finance recevables
and investmens o operating leases resulting from the fatlure of customers or dealers to make contractual
pavments, Management evaluates the allowance a1 keast quanerly, considening & vanety of factors and assumptions to
determine whether the allowance is considered adequate to cover probable and estimable losses incurred as of the balance
sheet dare

Manngement develops and documents the allowance for credit losses on finance receivables based on two poniolio
seprents, The determination of portfolio sepments i based primarily on the qualitntive consideration of the natwre of our
business operations and the charactenistics of the underlying finance receivahles, as follows:

- Retuil Loan Portfidio Segorent — The retnil loan porfolio segment consases of retal contracts acquired from
dealers in the U5, and Puerto Rico. Under a retail contract, we ane pranted a scourity interest in the
underlving collateral which consists primarnily of Toyota and Lexus vehicles, Based on the common sk
chamctenstics associated with the finance receivables, the retal boan portfolio sepment 1s considered a single
clnas of finance receivable,

N Dealer Products Partfolic Segueewt - The dealer products portfolio segment consists of wholesale financimg,
waorking capital loans, revolving lines of credin and real estate loans o dealers i the 115, and Puerto
Rico. Whelesale financing is primarily collateralized by new or used vehicle inventory sath the outstandimg
balance flucmaning based on the level of invemtory. Working capital loans and revalving lines of credit are
granted for working capital purposes and are secured by deabership assess. Real esiane loans are
collateralized by the underlyving real esiate, are underwritten primarily on a loan-to-value basis and ane
typically for o fixed term. Based on the nsk chametenstics ussociated with the underdving finance
receivables, the dealer products ponfielio segment consists of three classes of limance receivables: wholesale,
waorkeng capatal (o ludosge revalving hnes of credst), and real estate,

‘We also separately develop and document the allowance for credit losses for investmenis in operating
leases. Investments in operatmg beases are not within the scope of sccountmyg guidance govermning the dhsclosure of
porifolio segments.

Methadutagy sed o Bevelog the Allevanee for Credit fosses
Retail Loan Porffidio Segmens and hrvesimenis in Operaring Leases

Tl level of credht risk i our retail loan portfolio segment and our investments i operatoig leases i3 influenced primarnly
by two factors: defaull frequency and loss severity, which in am are influenced by various factors such as cconomic
conditions. the used vehicle market, purchase quality mix, contract term length, and collection strategies and practices,

We evaluate the retnal loan portfolio segment and mvestments in operating leases using methodologies that melude roll
rate, eredin nsk grade/tier, and vintage analysiz. We review and analyze external factors, including changes in economic
conditions, nctunl or perceived quality, safety and relibility of Tovota and Lexus vehicles, unemployment levels, the
wsed velicle market, and consumer behavior. In addiban, dnternal factors, such as purchase quality mix and operasacmal
chonges are also considered in the analyses. This process, along with management judgment, 15 used 1o establish the
allowance for credin losses 1o cover probable and estimable losses incurred as of the balance sheet date.

We utilize a loss emergence periad assumption in developing our allowance for credt losses. This assumption represents
the average length of tine between when o boss event first occurs and when the aceount is charped off. We apply
Juclgment in estimating the loss emergence period using avalable credat information and trends.
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5 — r i
Bealer Products Povifolio Segaent

Thee level of credin risk m our dealer products portfolio sepment s mfluenced primanly by the fmancial strength of dealers
within owr perifolio, dealer concentration, collseral guality, and ether econoanac factors. The fnancial strengih of dealers
within our porifolio 5 influenced by, among other factors, general cconomic conditions, the overall demand for new and
used velicles and the finaeinl conditon of automotive manufacturers

We cvaluate the dealer porifolio by agyregating dealer financing receivables into loan-nsk pools, which are determined
based on the sk charactensiics of the loan (e.g. secored by velucles, real estate or dealership assets). We analyee the
loan-risk pools wsing miemally developed nsk ratings for each dealer. We also utilize a loss emergence period
asswmgion in developang owr allowance for credin losses, The boss emergenoe penod represems the nme penod between
the date at which the loss evemt is estimated to have occarred and the ultimate realization of that loss through charge-
off. In addition, field operations management and our special assets group are consulted each quarter vo determine if any
specific dealer loan is considered impared. 1§ impaired loans are identified. specific reserves are established, as
approgwiate, and the loan is removed from the loan-risk pool for separate monitoring. W apply judgment i estimating
the loss emergence period using pvailable credit information and rends.  This process, along with monagement judgment,
is used 1o establish the allowance for credit losses 10 cover probable and estimable losses incurred as of the halance sheet
date.

Accourring for e Allowanee for Credit Losses and fmpaired Beceivables

The majority of the allowance for credit losses covers estimated losses on the reta] loan portfolio segment and
investmenis in operating leases which are collectively evaluated for impairment. The remainder of the allownnee for
credit losses covers the estiminged bosses on the denler products portfolio segment. Within the dealer prostusts portfohio
sepment, we estahlish specific reserves to cover the estimated losses on individual smpaired loans (mcluding loans
madified m a troubled debd restructuring ). The specific reserves are assessed based on discounted cash flows, the loan’s
ohservable marker price, of the fair value of the underlying collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Increases ta the allawance for credit losses are accompanied by comresponding charpes 1o the Provision for credit losses
on our Consolidated Stmements of Income. The uncollectible pomion of finance receivables and investmenis in operating
leases i charged w the allowsnce for credit losses at the earlier of when an account 15 deemed to be uncollectible or when
an account 15 greater than 120 days past due. In the event we repossess the collateral, the receivable is charped-off and
wie record the collatersl ag its estmuted fur value less costs w sell and ceport it in Other assets in our Consoladted
Balance Sheets. Recovenes of [inance recervables and investments in operatmg leases previously charged ol as
uncollecuble are credited 1o the alfowance for credt losses.

The following table provedes informanon related to our allowance for credst losses on finance receivables and
investments in operating leases:

Years ended March 31,

2020 2019
Allowance for credin losses ot beginnmy of period $ 602 % 597
Chirpe-offi (470} (464)
Recoveries 95 97
Provision for eredit losses Sy in
Allowance for credin losses at end of persod 5 817 % 602

Dhering the fourth quarter of 2020, the broader sconomy experienced a significant deterioration in the macroecomomic
environment driven by the COYID- 19 pondemic, which resulted m oo 5264 milhon of addmonal provision for credin
losses.
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5_ I i
Allewarce for Credit Loxses and Finonee Receivabdes by Porifolio Xegment
The following tables provide mformation related to our allowsnce for credit losses for finance receivables und finance

recemvithles by pontfolio segment

Yienr ended March 31, 2020

Allvwance for Credii Losses for Finance Receivables: Retail loan  Dealer producis Total
Begmmng balance, Apnl 1, 2004 § g s 195 % 44
Chiarge-offs {358) (12) {370
Recaveries 50 - 0
Prowisson fior credit losses 490 58 S48
Emding balance, March 31, 2020 5 486 § 241 § 727
Ending balance: Indvvidually evaluated for anparment 5 -5 65 3 65
Ending bulance: Collectively evaluated for impainment 1 486 % 176 § 62
Finanee Receivables:

Emnding balance, March 11, 2030 £ 57088 % 17873 % T4.961
Ending balance: Individually evaluated for impairment 5 - % 528 % 528
Emding balance: Collectively evaluated for impairment % 57088 % 17345 § Ta. 413

The ending balance of finance receivables collectively evalunted for impairment in the above table inclsdes
approximately $233 million of finance receivables within the retail loan portfolio segment that are specifically identified
as impaired, These amounts are aggregated within thear respective portfolio segment when determining the allowance for
credit losses as of March 31, 2020, as they are deemed 1o be insignificant for indavedunl evaluation and we have
determined that the allowance for credit losses 15 not significant and would not be materally different of the amounts had
been individually evaluated for imparment, The ending balance of finance receivables for the dealer products pontlolio
sepment collectively evalunted for impaimment s of March 31, 2020 includes S1.047 million in fomnce recevables that
are guarnnieed by Tovota Moter Monh America, e (“TMMNAT) and $140 millon 1 linance receivables that are
wuarweed by third panty private Tovots distnbutors. These finince recervables are related 10 certaim Toyvetn and Lexus
dealers and other third parties 1o whom we provided linancing at the request of TMMA and third party private Toyota
distributors.
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Allowance for Credit Losses for Finance Receivables:
Beginning balance, Apeil 1, 2018

Charge-ofls

Recoveries

Prowvision for credit losses

Enhng balunce, March 31, 2019

Emding balance: Individually evaluated for anpairment
Emding balance: Collecuvely evaluated for impairment

Finance Receivables:

Ending balance, March 31, 2019

Ending balance: Individually evaluated for impairment
Emding balance: Collectively evaluated for impairment

¥ear ended March 31, 2019

oOoOooodn

Hetail lonn  Dealer products Tatal
5 iz 5 151 § hi
(330 * (330)

30 - i

271 A 6

5 4 3 195 % 499
-3 - 5 o 5 b
5 5 96 5 400
5 530319 § 17696 § 71,635
5 - 5 623 % 623
5 5303 8§ 17073 § 71,012

Thse ending balance of finance recevables collectively evalunted for impairment i the above table includes
approximately $231 million of finance receivables within the retail loan portfolio sepment thar are specifically identified
as impaired, These amounts are aggregnted within their respective partfolio segment when determining the allowance for
credin losses as of March 31, 2019, as they are deemed to be insignificant for individunl evaluation and we have
derermined that the allowance for credat losses s not significant and would nat be materally diffenent of the amounts had
been mdividually evaluated for impairment. The ending balance of finance receivables for the dealer products portfalio
segitent collectively evaluated for impairmient as of March 31, 2019 meludes 51,091 millian in foance recervables that
are guaranieed by TMNA and $132 million in finance receivables that are guaranteed by third party private Tovots
distnbutors, These finance recervables are nelated W cenam Toyots and Lexus dealers and other third parties 1o whom we
provided financing at the request of TMNA and third party private Toyola dismbutors,
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Our liabilities consist mainly of fixed and vanable rate debt, denominated m U S, doflars and various other curmencies,
which we i3sue i the global capatal markes, while our assets consist prunanly of LS, dollar denomnmnated, lixed rane
receivables. We enter into interest mic swaps, interest rate floors, and foreign curmency swaps fo coonomically hedpe the
interest rate and foreign currency risks tiat result from the different charactenistics of our assets and labilities, Our use of
dervative transactions is ntended o reduce long-term flucteations in the fair value of assets and liabilitics caused by
market movements, All of our dervative activaties are authorized and monitored by our management and our Asset-
Liahility Committee which provides a framework for financial controls and governance to manage market risk.

We categonee dernvatives as those desagnated for hedpe accounting {“hedge accounting denvatmes”™) and those that wre
not designnted for hedge scocounting ' non-bedpe sccounting derivatives”™). At the inception of a derivative contract, we
may elect to designate a derivative as a hedge aceounting derivative if cenain criterin are met, As of September 30, 2018,
wie o longer have any hedpe accountmg dertvatives.

All derivative instruients are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, taking into consideration s effects of legally
enforceable master netting agreements that allow us 1o net settle asset and hability posihions and offset cash collotem|
with the same eounterparmy on a net basis. Chanpges in the fair value of oor derivative instruments sre recognized as a
component of Interest expense m our Consolidated Statements of Income. The dervative instruments are mcluded as a
component of Other assers or Other liabilines in our Consalidated Balance Sheets.

Offsetsing af Derivatives
The accounting puidance permins the net presentaiion on our Consolidnted Balance Sheets of derivative receivables and

dervanive payables with the same counterparty and the related cash collateral when a legally enforceable naster netiing
agreement exists. When wie meet this condition, we elect to present such balances on a net hasis.

Cher International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“150A™) Master Agreements are our master netting agreements
which permit muluple transactions 1o be cancelled and seitbed with a single net balance paid io cither party. The master
netting agreements also contain reciprocal collateral agreements which require the transfer of cash collateral to the party
in o ner asset position across all rransactions, Cur collateral agreements with substantially all our counerparties include a
zezo threshold, full collateralization arangement. Althoueh we have dmly viluation and collateral exchange
ammangements with all of our couwterpariies, due 1o the tme reguired 10 move collateral, there may be a delay of up 1o one
day between the exchange of collateral and the valustion of our denvatives, Wi would nog be regquared to post additional
collateral to the counterparties with whom we were ina net liability position ar March 31, 2020, if owr credit rmiings were
1o deching, since we fully collnteralue without regard 1o credi mtngs with these counterparties. In addion, as our
collateral agreements include legal nghit of offset provisions, collateral amounis are netted agains) derivative assets or
dervative Dabilines, the net amoun of which 15 meluded m Other assets or Otler Labilines inowr Consolidated Balance
Sheets.
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virte & — Derivatives, Hedging Activities and Interest F
Derivative Activity Impact on Financtal Statemeniy
The following tables show the finaocial statement line stem and amount of our denivative assets and liabilites that ane
reporied in our Consolidated Balaince Sheets:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Fair Fair
Motional wilie Motsonal value
Chher assels:
Imterest rate swaps 5 3036 8 1410 5 49254 % 4m
Foreign currency swaps ABE 7 2771 T2
Toaal 5 30E50 35 1437 § 5202% 5 544
Counterpanty metting Ny (441}
Coltateral held [4320) (42}
Carrving value of devivative contragts — Ciher assets 5 51 5 6l
Oithier linbilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 69079 5 1826 5 57593 % 622
Foreign currency swaps 13181 1.2%0 Q. Thé 185
Toul 5 81160 5 le s 67389 § 1,407
Counterpany metting (6 ) (441 )
Collateral posted {2.10%) (94}
Carrving value of derivative contracts — Ciher
linbilities 5 45 5 26

As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, we held excess collateral of $10 mullion and 52 mallion, respectively, which we did not
use fo olfsel derivative assets and was recorded in Other Liabilities in owr Consolidaed Balance Sheets. As of March 31,
2020 and 2019, we posted excess collaeral of 51 pullion and 517 million, respectively, which we did not use to offset
derivanve liabilines and was recorded in Chther assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets,

Ll
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e following table summarnees the components of iterest expense. including the lecation and amount of gans and
losses on dervative instruments and related hedped items, as reported in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Y ears ended Mareh 31,
2020 2019 2018

Interest expense on debt 5 2488 5 1559 % 1,970
[mterest expense (income) an dervatives 150 {53) 6T}

Interest expense an debt and derivanves 2,668 2,506 1,903
{Gining ) losses on debt denominated in
foreign currencics {703} {1,078) 1,344
Losses (gams) on foreign cumency swaps LE0 1.OIS {1,300}
Losses {gams) on LS. dollar merest rale swaps 219 04 (k)
Total mterest expensy 5 183 5 2747 3 1,851

[nterest expense on debi and derivatives represents net interest setilements and chanpes in aceruals. Gains and losses on
denvatives and debt desominated in foreign currencies exclude net imerest senlements and changes in acerals, Cash
flows associated with derivatives are reported in Net cash provided by operating activities in our Consolidated Seatements
of Cnsh Flows,
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Mote T — Dehi and Credil Facilitics
Debe and the related weighted avernge contraciual imerest rtes are summanzed as follows:
Murch 31, 2020 Muorch 31, 2019
Weaghted Weighted
average average
Face Carrving  contragiual Face Camymg  contraciual
virlug vitlue Interest rabes vilue vilue INIETEst rancs
Unsecured notes and loans payable 5 831477 5 83172 207% % BOSRTS § BDS2I 2.0601%,
Secured notes and loans payable 14,597 14,568 2.13% 12,421 12,401 262%
Total detw 5 OR07T4 5§ 97740 208% 8 G93206 5 920922 2.60%

The cammying vahue of our et includes unamomized premiums, discounts, debt isswance costs and the effects of foreign
currency translation adjustments. Debs issuance costs are deferred and amortzed to mtevest expense on an effective yviekd
basis over the contractual term of the deba.

Weigheed average comractual interest rates are calculated based on onginal notonal er par value before consideration of
premiem or discount and approximate the effective Interest rates.

Diehe is callable ot par value, Scheduled mowrittes of our debt portfolio are surmmarnzed below.  Actual repayment of
secured debt will vary based on the repayment activity on the related pledped assets.

Future

Years ending March 31, diebs malwrities
2021 - 51,489
2022 19,170
2023 11942
2024 34973
2025 5012
Therealier! 6,488
Umamortized premiums, discounts snd debt ssuance costs (334)
Total debi 5 07,740

! Unsecured and secured nows ond loans pavable mare cn various dases through fiscal 20449

Unsecured notes and foas payable

Onr wnsecured netes and loans payable consist of commercin] paper and fixed and vaniable rfe debt. Short-term fundimg
needs are met through the issuance of commercial paper in the 115, Amounts outstanding under our commercial paper
programs were $27.0 balliom and $25.3 billion as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively

Upon sssuance of fived rate debe, we penerally elect to enter imo pay-float swaps o convent fixed rate payments on debt
1o floamng rate payments. Certan unsecured notes and loans payable ane denominated in various foreign currencies. The
debi is translated im0 L7.S. dollars using the applicable exchange rate at the transaction date and reranslated at each
balance sheet date using the exchange rfe i effect at that date. Concurrent with the samnce of these foregn curency
unsecured notes and loans payvable, we enter into currency swaps in the same notional amount to convent non-1.5.
currency payments o LS, dollar denommated pavments. CGins and losses reluted 1o foreiun currency transactions are
included in Interest espense in our Consoliduted Statements of Income.

Certnn of our unsecured notes and loans payable contan covenants and conditions customary i transactions of this
naiture, including negative pledge provissons, cross-default provisions and limitations on cenan consolsdations, mergers
and sales of wssets, We are currently in compliange with thess covenants and conditions,

@
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7= Credit Facilit i

Kecured iotes and loais payable

Our secured notes and loans payahle are denominated in U5, dollars and consist of both fixed and variahle rane
debt, Secwred notes and loans payable are 1sswed vsing on-halance sheet securmtization trusts, as further discussed m Note
8 — Variahle Interest Entities. These notes are repayahle only from collections on the underlying securitized retail finance
recenvibles and the benelicial interests i investments n operating beases and from related credit enhancemenis,

In June 2019, we completed an offering of secured notes under a new revolving asset-backed securiization program,
backed by a revalving pool of linance recevables and cash collateral. Cash flows from these receivables during the
revolving penod in excess of what 15 needed o pay certuin expenses of the securtization trust and contraciual interess
payments on the related secured notes may be used to purchase addinonal recesvables, provided that certain conditions
are met following the purchase. The secured notes feature a scheduled five year revolving pened, with the ability 1o
repray the secured notes 1o full, afier which an amortzation period beging, The revelving penod may also end with e
amortization period beginning upon the occurmence of certain events that include cernain segregated account balances
Enlling below teear required levels, credit bosses or delinquencies on the pool of assets supporting the nofes excesding
specified levels, the adjusted pool balance falling 10 less than 50% of the initial principal amount of the secured notes, or
interest nod being paid on the secured notes.

Credit Facilities apd Letters aof Credit
For additional lquidiny purposes, we muntun credil facilines as described below:

A6d Iy Credit Agreement, Three Year Credit Agreement and Five Year Credit Agrecment

In Naovember 2019, TMCC, Tovota Credit de Pueno Rico Corp. ("TCPR ™) and other Toyora affiliates re-emered imo n
£5.0 billiom 364 dav syndicated bank credit facility, a $5.0 billon three vear syndicated bank credit fcility and 2 $5.0
hillion five vear syndicated bank credit facility, expinng in fiscal 2021, 2023, and 2025, respectively.

The ability 1o make drvws 15 subject to covenants and condiions customary m transactions of thes nature, imclodimg
negatve pledge provisions, eross defauli provisions and limitations on certain consolidanions, mergers and sale of
assets, These agreements may be used for peneral comporate purposes and none were drawn upon as of March 31, 2020
and 2019, We are currently in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreements described above.

Other Unsecured Credit Agreenents

TMCC has eniered imnio additional unsecured credin facilities with vanous banks, As of March 31, 2020, TMOC had
commatted bank credit facalines totalbing $4.6 bilbon, of which, 52,5 billion and 52.1 billion mature m fiscal 2021 and
2023 respectively.

Tleese credst agreements contmn covenants and conditions customarny in iransactions of this nature, including negaiive
pledpe provisions, cross-default provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales of asscts, These
credi facilities were not drawin upon as of March 11, 2020 or 20019, We are curremly in compliance with the covenning
and condions of the credit agreements descnbed above

TMOCC is party 1o a 55,0 billion three year revobeing credit facility sath TMS expiring in fiscal 2022 This credic facality
was drawn upon as of March 31, 2020 for o prncipal smount of 530 ballion with an interest rate of 1| 86%,_ matunng on
September 30, 2020, The amount is recorded in Other habilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet and will be used for
penernl corporate purposes.

From time to me, we may borrow from affiliates based upon a number of business factors such as funds availabilivy,

cash flow wming, relative cost of funds, and market access capahilines. Amounts borowed from affiliates are recorded m
Onher Liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
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A VIE 15 an entity that eather (1) has snsufficient equity 1o permat the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support or (i) has equity investors who lack the charscteristics of a controlling financial
interest, The primary beneficary of a VIE 15 the party with both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most
sipnificantly impact the VIEs economic performance and the obligamion 1o absort the losses or the right 10 receive
benefits that could potentially be sigmificant 1o the VIE

To assess whether we have the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact its economic
performance, we consider all the fcts and circumstances incheding our role in establishing the VIE and aur enpoing
rights and responsibilities. This assessment includes identifying the activities that most significantly impact the VIE s
ecomomic perfarmance and idenrifying which party, if any, has power over these activities. In general, the parmy thar
makes the most significant decisions affecting the VIE 15 determined o have the power 1o direct the activities of the

WIE. To asiess whether we have the obligation to absorh the losses or the right to receive benefits thar could potentially
be sigmificant to the VIE, we consider oll of our economic intevests, mcluding debt and equity mterests, servicmg righis
and lee arrangements, and any other vanable interests m the VIE, If we determine tat we are the pany with the power o
make the most sygnificant decisions affecting the VIE, and we have an obligation to abserb the losses or the nght o
recesve benefits ta could potentially be sigmificam 1o the VIE, then we conselidae the VIE,

We perform ongeang reassessments, wsually quarterly, of whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE. The
Teassessment process considers whether we have acquired or divested the power to direct the most sigmificant activities of
the VIE through changes in goveming documents o other circumstances. W also reconsider whether entities previowsly
determined not o be VIEs have become VIEs, based on new events, and therefore could be subject 1o the VIE
consalidation framework.

Comsolidated Variable Interest Entities

We use one or mone special purpose entities that are considered Vanable Interest Ennines to issue asset-backed securties
o third party bank-sponsored asset-backed secunitization vehieles and 1o mvestors in secuniization transactions, The
secunties ssued by these VIEs are backed by the cash Mows related o retal Goance recevables and beneficial mterests m
invesuments in operating leases ("Securnitized Assets”). We hold variable interests i the VIEs that could potentiaily be
sigmficant to the VIEs, We determined that we are the primary benefecnry of the secuntzation trasts because (1) our
servicing responsibilitees for the Securitized Assets give us the power 1o direet the activities that most signaficantly impact
the performance of the VIEs, and (1) our variable interests in the VIEs give us the obligation 10 absorb losses and the
right to receive residual retums that could potentially be significan:.

Tise Following tables show the nssets and linbalities related 1o our VIE secuntization transactions that were mgluded in our
Consolidated Balance Shects:

March 31, 2020

VIE Assels VIE Liabilities
Mot
Restricted securitized Other Onher
cash assets asseis Dkt linbalines
Reiail finnnce receivables 1 4 5 12375 % 58 10,933 § o
Imvestments in operating leases 302 3. 586 126 1,635 2
Total 3 T 5 1790 5 131 § 14568 § 12
March 31, 2019
YIE Assets VIE Liabilines
Net
Restncted secuntized Other Other
cash assels assels Debi liaghilities
Reqail finance receivahles b 630§ 11,075 § 6 5 a2 % o
Investments i operating leases 355 5,307 | B ERE 2
Tonal £ Q85 § 16,382 § 192 S 12401 § 12
95
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BNote & — Variable Interest Entities (Continued)
Resncted Cash, includhng cash equivalents, shown m the previous table represents collections from the underlhang Net
Securitized Assets shown in the previous mble and cenain reserve deposits held by TMOC for the VIEs and is included s
part of Restricted cash and cash equivalents an our Consolidated Balance Sheets, Net Securitized Assots shown in the
previous table are presented net of deferred fees and costs. deferred income, accumulated depreciation and the allowance
for eredit losses, Chber Assets represent used vehicles held-for-sale that were repossessed by or returmed o TMCC for
the benefit of the VIEs. The related debt of these consolidated V1Es s presented net of 51_182 million and $1 486 million
of securities retmned by TMOC at March 31, 2020 and 2009, respectively. Other Liabalines represems acerued interest
on the debt of the consolidated VIEs.

The assers of the VIEs and the restricted cash and cash equivalents held by TMOC serve as the sole source of repaymient
for the asset-backed securities issued by these ennities. Investors in the notes issued by the VIEs do not have recomerse to
s of our other aswers, with the exception of customary representation and warranty repurchase provisions and
indeminties.

Ax the primary beneficiary of these entithes, we are exposed o credit, residual value, interest mate, and prepaymem risk
from the Securitized Assets in the VIEs. However, our exposure to these risks did not change as a resolt of the ransfer of
the assers to the VIEs, 'We may also be exposed 1o inierest rate risk arising from the secured notes issued by the VIEs,

in addinon, we entered into interest rate swaps with certain special purpose entities that issee varoble mee debt. Under
the terms of these swaps, the special purpose entities are obligated 1o pay TMOC a fixed mie of iterest on cenain
payment dates in exchange for receiving a floating rate of interest on notional amounts equal 1o the outstanding balance of
the secured debi. This arrangement enables the special purpose entities o mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in

issumng vanable raie debt that 15 secured by fixed rate Secuntized Assets.

The transfers of the Securitized Assets w the special purpose enties in our securizations are considered o be sales for
legal purposes. However, the Secuntized Assets and the related debe remamn on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, We
recognize financing revenue on the Secuntized Assets and interest expense on the secured deabt issusd by the special
s entines, We also maimtn an allowance for credit losses on the Secuniized Assels 1o cover estimaled probakle
crodit losses using a methodology consistem with that used for our non-securitieed asset pontfolio. The interest rate
swaps between TMOC and the speonl purpose entities sre consedered ntercompany transactions and therefore are
eliminated in our consolidated financial stalements.

Non=comvelfdated Varinbie fnterexs Entities

We provide lendmg to Toyota and Lexus dealers through the Tovota Dealer Investment Group's Dealer Capital Program
(TG Program™) operted by our affilute, TMNA, which has an equity mierest i these dealerships, Dealers
participating in this program have been determined to be VIEs. We do not conselidate the dealerships in this program as.
we are nod the primary beneliciary and any exposure to loss s himited to the amount ol the credit facility, Amounts due
[rom these dealers under the TDG Program that are classified as Finance receivables, net in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at March 31, 2020 and 2019 and revenues camed from these dealers dunmng Nscal 2020, 2009 and 2018 were pot
significant.

We nlso have other lendimg relatonslups which have beéen deternined 10 be VIEs, but these relatonships are nol
consolidated as we are not the primary beneficiary. Amounts due and revenues eamed under these relationships as of
March 31, 2020 and 2019 were not significant.
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Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies
Comenritaents aend {aararaniees
We have emered into cenain commitments and guarantees for which the masximum unfunded amounts are summarized in
the mble below:
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Commiimenis:
Credit Facilities commitments with dealers 5 122 3§ 1,378
Camsmtments under ogerating lense arecments 139 144
T'otal commitiments 1,365 1,522
Ciarnmiees of affilnte pallution control and solid waste disposal bonds 104 1o
Total commutments and guarantees s 1465 § 1,622

Wholesale financing 15 not conssdered 10 be a contractual commitment as the armangements are mst binding armangements
under which TMOC is required to perform,

Commritinents

We provide fixed and variable eate working capital loans, revalving lines of credit, and real estate financing to dealers and
vanous mult-franchise organizations referred 1o as dealer groups for fualities construction and refurbrchment, working
capienl requirements, real estate purchases, business poquisinons and other general business purposes. These loans are
typacally secured with liens on real esiate, vehicle invemory, and/ar other dealership assets, as appropriate, and may be
wuannteed by indivisheal or corporate guaraniees of affiliated dealers, dealer growps, or dealer principals. Although the
loans are typacally collateralized or guaranteed, the value of the underlying collateral or guarantees may not be sulficient
o gover pur exposure under such agreements. Our pricing reflects market conditions, the compentive environment, the
level of support dealers provide our retail, lease and msurance business and the ereditworthiness of each dealer. Amounts
drawm under these facilies are reviewed for collectabibty on a quanerly basis, in conjunctron with our evaluatson of the
allowanee for eredil bossaes, We lave also extended eredat facilities o afliliates as deseribed in Note 12 — Relmed Pany
Transwctions.

Lenve Commitments

Our operating lease portfolio consists of real estate leases, Total opernng lease expense, inchsding paymens to
afliliates, was 5336 millson for fiscal 2020 and $30 million for both fiscal 2019 and fscal 2008, We have a lease
agreement through August 2032 weth TMNA for our headgquaniers faality i Plano, Texas. Commitments under
operanng lease agreements in the table above include 5102 million and 597 million for facilines leases with affiliates at
March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Lease terms may contain renewal and extension oplions or early tenmunaton features. Generally, these options do mot
tmpact the bease term becouse TMOC 15 not reasonably certun that it wall exercise the options,  These lease agreements
de not impose restrictions en our ability 1o pay dividends, engage in debt or equity financing transactions or enter into
Further lease agreements, nor do they have resedunl value puaramees. We exchsde from oar Consolidated Balance Sheets
leases with a term equal to one vear or less and do not separate non-lease componenis from our real estate leases.
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Notg 9 —C Te ies (Continued
Char commaiments under operating lease mgreements are sumananzed below:

Amounis due on
operating lease
liabilines as of

Years ending March 31, March 31, 2020
2021 5 e |
222 13
2023 1%
2024 12
2025 1o
Thereafter 58
Toral 5 139
Present value discount (k]
Total operating lease hability - |20

Future mimimum lease

pavments as of March
Yewrs emding March 31, 31, 2019
2020 5 22
202] 1%
0 20
2023 12
2024 1
Theereafier 61
Total 5 144

Operating lease habalities and ROU assets are recogmesd at the lease commencement date based on the present value of
the fisture minimuem lease payments over the kesse term, As the ingerest rate implicat in the lease contract is tvpacally not
readily dererminable, we utilize our incremental borrowing rate &1 the lease commencement date for the duration of the
lease term.

I following able provedes additional enformation relared 1o operating lease apreements for which we are the lesses;

March 31,
2020

ROLI assets L4 114
Lease linbalities 5 120
Weighted average remnining lease term (in years) 1%
Weighted avernge discount rate 1.05%
Supplemental cash flow mformation

Cash paid for amounts meluded in the measurement of

lease Lnbilities - operntmg cash fows 5 ]
Supplemental non-cash information

ROU assets obtained in exchange for opemtng lease obhigatons 5 17
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Hote 2 — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Crnaramtees and (her Confingencies

TMOC has guaranteed bond obligations teialing $ 100 million in priseipal that were ssued by Putnam County, West
Wirgimia and Gibson County, Indiana to finance the comsdruction of pollution comrol facilites ar manuficturng plants of
cenain TMOC affiliates. The bonds matire m the following fiscal vears ending March 3 1: 2028 - 520 million; 2029 - 550
imillion; 2000 - $10 milhon:; 2031 - 510 nullion; and 2032 - $10 oullson, TMOC would be required to perform under the
guaranecs in the event of non-payment on the bonds and other related obligations. TMCC is entitled to reimbursement
by the applicable affiliates for any amoums pud. TMCOC receives n nomingl annunl fee for guarantecing such

payments. TMOC has not been required to perform under amy of these affiliate bond guarantees as of March 31, 2020
and 2009,

Tndemui ffoation

Lin the ardinary course of business, we enter mbo sgresments confaining indemmi fecation provisions standard in the
industry related 1o several types of transactiens, including. but not limited 1o, debt funding, derivatives, securiition
transactions, and our vendor and supplier agreemems. Performance under these indemnities would occur upon a breach
of the representations, wanmantics or covenands made or given, or a third panty claim. In addition, we have agreed in
ceriain debt and derivative issuances, and subject 1o certain exceptions, to oross-up payments due 1o third parties in the
event that wiathbolding tax 13 imposed on such payments. In addation, certam of our Funding arvmpements may require us
1o pay lenders for increased cosis due to cerain changes in laws or regulations. Due to the difficulty in predicting events
which could cause a breach of the indemmfication provisions or trigger a gross-up or sther payvment abligation, we are
not able o eximate our maximum exposure to fumre payments that could result from claims made under such
provisions. 'We hove not made any materinl payments in the past a5 o result of these provisions, and as of Morch 31,
200200, we determined that it is not probable thatr we will be required o make any material paymems i the furure. As of
March 31, 2020 and 2019, no amounts hove been recorded under these indemmification provisions.

Livigation and CGovernmettal Proceedings

Wanous legal acnons, povernmental proceedimgs and ather clpms are pending or may be mentuted or asserted m the
funere against us with respect to maners arising in the ordimary course of business. Cermain of these actions ane or purporn
10 be class action suits, seeking sizeable damages and/or changes i our busingss operations, policics and )
practices. Certain of these actions are similar to suits that have been filed ngainst other financial mstitutions and captive
finance compames. In sddinon, we are subject o governmental and regulatory examinanons, miormaton-gethenng
recuests, sl mvestigations from time to nme at the state and federal levels. Tt is inheremtly difficult to predict the course
of such legal actions and governmental mguimes,

We perform penodic reviews of pending claims and actions to determime the probabiliey of adverse verdscts and resubting
amourts of liability, We establish aceruals for legal claims when payvments associated with the claims become probable
and the cests can be reasonably estimated. When we are able, we also determine estimutes of reasonably probable loss or
ringe of hoss, whether in excess of any relned scerued liability or where there 15 no ncerued lsbility, Given the inherent
uncertainty associated with legal matiers, twe actual costs of resolving legal claims and associated costs of defense may be
substasnally higher or lower than the amounts for which acorunls have been established. Based on avmlable miormation
and established acoruals, we do net believe it 1s reasonably probable that the results of these proceedings. cither
individunlly or in the aporegate, will have a matenial adverse effiect on our consolidated financial condition or resulis of
opérations.
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Note 10 — Pension and Other Benelit Flans
We are a participating emplover in certnn retirement and post-retrement medical care, hife msurance, and other benefits

sponsored by TMMNA, an affiliate. Costs of each plan are generally allocated to TMCOC based on relative benefit costs
associted with participating or eligible ensployees ot TMOC as compared 1o the plan as a whole,

Difimed Benefit Plawn

Frioe o Jamary 1, 2003, our employees were gengrally ehgible to participate in the Toyous Motor Sales, US.A,, Ing,
Penston Plan (the *“Pension Plan”™) commencing on the first day of the month following bire and were vested alter 5 vears
of continuous employment, Effective lnuary |, 2015, the Pension Plan was closed 1o emplovees first employved or
reemploved on or after such date.

Benefits payable under this non-contributory delined benefit pension plan are based, generally, upon the emplovess’ years
of credited service (up 1o a maximam of 25 years), the highest average annual compensation (as defmed in the plan) for
any &0 consecutive month period ow of the last 120 months of emplovment (the “Applicable Years™), and one-hall of
eligible bonus'gift payments for the Applicable Years {recalculated 1o determine the annual average of such amount),
reduced by a percentage of the estimated amount of social secunity benefis,

Costs allocated to TMCC for our employvees i the Pension Plan and cenain other non-gualified plans were not significant
For figcal 2020, 2019 ad 2018,

Dhefivred Contribartion Plae

Employees meeting certmn eligibility requirements, os defined in the plan documents, may pamicipate in the Tovot
Motor North America, Inc. Betiremient Savings Plan. Under this plon, eligible emplovees may elect to contribute between
| percent and 30 percent of their eligible pre-tax compensanon, subject o federal fax regulanon limits, 'We match 66,67
percent of the first & percent that o particpant contnbutes, up o 4 percent of eligible compensation.  Participanis are
always 100%: vested in their contributions w the Retirernent Savings Plan. Employer contnbutions vest on a 4-vear
wraded schedule at 25 percent per vear, Generally, contnbutions are funded through bi=weekly payniems 1o the plan’s
adminisirxior, Certain emplovees hired on or afier January 1, 2015, may be eligible to receive an additional Company
contribution to the plan calculated based on their age and compensation

TMCC emplover contributions 1o the savings plan were ot significant for fiscal 2020, 2019 and 2018,

Either Post=Fetirement Henefit Plans

Employees are generally eligible to participate m other post-retirement benefits sponsored by TMMNA which provide
certain medical care and life nsurance benefits 1o eligible retired emplovess. Generally, in order 1o be eligible for thess
benefits, the employee must be age 55 or elder with 10 or more vears of service,

Other post-retirement benefin costs allecaed 1o TMOC were nos sagnificant for fiseal 2020, 2009 and 2018,
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Note 11 — Income Taxes
We use the lubility method of sccounting for income taxes under which deferred tax assets and Labiities are adjusted 1o

reflect changes in tax rates and laws in the period such changes are enacted resulting in adjusiments to the current fiscal
yeur s provision for income taxes

TMCL files a consolidated foderal income tax retum with TFS1C and 115 subsidianes. Cursent and deferred federal
inconme taxes are allocated 1o TMOC as if 0t were p separate txpayer. TMOC s net operating losses and tax credits are
utilized when those losses and eredits arc wsed by TFSIC and its subsidiarics including TMOC i the consolidated federal
income tax return, TMOC files either separmie or consolidnted ‘combined state mscome tax returms with TMNA, TFSIC, or
subsidiaries of TMOC. State income tnx expense is generally recognized as if TMOC and its subsidiaries filed their tax
refurns om a stand-abone basis, In those states where TMOC and its subsidiaries join in the filing of consolidated or
combined income tax returns, TMOC and ies subsidianes are allocated their share of the wial income tax expense based
on combined allocanon/apportionment factors and separate company income of loss. Based on the federal and seate tax
sharng agreensents, TFS1C and TMOC and ris subsidiarses pay for their share of the income tux expense and are
reimrbursed for the benefit of any of their wx besses and credits utilized in the federal and stae income tax returns,

Thee provisaon { benefit} for meome taxes consisted of the followimg:

YVears ended March 31,
2020 2009 2018

Current
Federal 5 (12 s (55) S (45
State 1240 Te (10
Foreign 8 4 L]

Toaal 1y 5 (52}
Deferred
Federal 145 207 (2,625)
Stuge {141} (45} 4%
Fareign () (1) -

Teaal 2 157 (2,377
Provisson (benefit) for income taxes 5 [ - 182 % {2.62%)

A reconcihation between the LS, federal statutory tax rate and the effective tx rte 15 as follows:

ears ended March 31,
2020 209 2018

Prensson for ncome txes o LS. federnl stotory tax rate 21.0% 21.0% 3lat%
State and bocal taxes (net of federal @ benefit) 4.0% 4.6% 4.8%
Effect of stase tax law changes (397" {13)%% {01
Federal tax credits (3.71% [LEIN (11 )%
Tax rate differential from tax loss carrvback [5.61% (25 .

Adjustment for pror year provision 1o retum differences (1.00% (1.4)% 0.4%
Revalsation of federal deferred tax lisbility from TCJA - - (37167
(nher, net - (0.5 )% [
Eifective tax rate 10 E% 18.6% 1336.6)%

The amwsunits in Federal tax credits include tx benefits from alternative fuel vehicle credits and foreign tx credits for
fiscnl 2020, and plug-m vehicle credits amd research and development credits for fiscal 2020, 2009, and 2018,

1o
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Note 11 — Income Taxes (Continued)
Drurany fiscal 2008, the TCIA reduced the corporate incoms s rate from 35% o 21%., As a result, our federal statutony
rate for fiscal 2018 was a blended rate of 31.6% and we recorded a $2.9 billion income tax benefit from the revaluation of
our net deferred tax linkalities, We completed our assesement of the mpact of the TCIA wathin twelve months from ns

ennctment date, and such imipact has been reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the vear ended
March 35, 20019

Our met deferred income tax liability consisted of the following deferred ax labilities and asscis:

March 31,
2020 2019

Liabilities:

Lense transactions $ 5080 % Ta21

State taxes. net of federal tax benefit 629 547

Insurance dealer commissions 254 235

Mark-to-market of investments in marketable securinies and derivatives 14 2

Ohher B3 33
Deferred tax liabilities H 6060 § £,300
Asseis:

Prowision for credit and residual value losses i70 36l

Diefermed costs and fees 188 192

Met operating loss and tax credit carryforwards 1oo 2,297

Lease obligations 35 -

Obher 32 21
Deferned tax assets Tis 2,872

Valwation allownnce {13) (24
Met defermed tax assels H Tz 5 2,548
Met deferred mcome tax labiliy! § 5458 8§ 5452

| Babance includes defirred tax liabilitses sitnbutable 1o unrealiced gains or losses ineluded in sccumuliied other comprebensive
icaime or loss, net of 34 millon and 51 mallion ag Mareh 31, 3020 and 3019, respectively. The change in this balance b ned e ludad m
todnl deferred lax expense,

We have deferred tax assets velated to cumalative state net operating loss carry forwards of $37 million at March 31,
20020, compared 10 52,1 hillion in federal net operating loss deferred tax nssets and 5147 million in state net operating loss
deferred b assets a8 March 31, 2019, respectively. We have no deferred tax assets reloted to cumulative faderal net
operating loss carry forwards at March 31, 2020, Some sute net operanng loss carmyforwards have no expiranon while
others expire beginning in fiscn] 2022

‘We have deferred tax assets related 1o federal tax credits for alternative fuel vehicles and plug-in vehicles, research and
development, and forergn tax of $52 oullion, 510 million, $1 million, at March 31, 2020, respectively, This 1s compared
1o deferred tax assets related to federal tax credis for plug-in vehicles, research and development, foreign tax, and
alemative mimmuam tax of $38 malhon, $14 mallion, 33 million, and $12 million ar March 31, 2019, respectively. The
federal tax credit carryforwards will expire beginning in fiscal 2028

The deferred tax nssets related to foreion tax credit and state fax net operating boss carmyforwards are reduced by o
valuanen allowance of 513 mulhon and 524 millon at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respectively. The
determinuion of the valuaton allowance is based on mumagement's estirmate of future table income during the
respective carmyforwand periods. Apart from the valuation allowance, we believe that the remaining deferred tax assets
will bz realioed in full. The amount of the deferred ax assets considered realizable could be reduced if management s
estimates change.

102

211/318



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)
Note 11 -~ Income Taxes (Continued)
We have made an asserton of permanent renvestment of enrmings from owr foreign subsidiry, as o result, other than the
deemed repatriation 1ax that is provided pursuant to the TCJA, state and local taxes have not been provided for unremined
enrnings of our foreign subsidiry, At March 31, 20200and 2009, these wnrenninted eamings totiled 3243 ounllion and
%233 million, respectively. Determination of the smount of the defemred state and local mx liability is not pracricable, and
accardingly no estimate of the unrecorded deferred state and local tax liabality & provided

Although we do not foresee any cvents cawsing repatnntion of camings, possitle examples may include but arc not
limied to parent company capital needs or exiting the business in the foreign country

At March 31, 2020, we had an income tax payable of $47 millson for our share of the income iax in these sinies where we
filed consslidamed or combaned returns with TMNA and s subsichanies. Cur shage of the income tax payable o
reccivable in those states where we filed consolidated or combaned returns with TMNA and its subsidianes was not
significant at March 31, 2009, Addmionally, our federal and state meome tax payvable or receivable from TMOC affiliated
companies, including TFSIC, TFSB, and Tovoda Financial Services Securimes USA Corporation, was not significant for
bath Mareh 31, 2020 and 2019

The pwdance for the nccountmg and reporting fsr income Iaxes FequiTes us to assess tax posihons in cases where the
interpretation of the tax law may be uncenain, The change in unrecopnized tax benefits are as fallows:

hiarch 31,
200 2019 2018
Balance ai beginmng of the vear % 7 5 [ R i
Increases related to posions mken during the
current year 12 1 -
Balance st end of year 5 19 5 T 8 ]

At March 31, 2020, 2009 and 2018 approximately $17 million, 56 million and 56 million of the respective unrecopnized
tax benefits would, if recognized, have an effect on the effective tax rate. The remaining amounts in the respective
unrecogmzed tax benefits ot Murch 31, 2020, 2019 and 2008 are related to toiming matters. Dunng fiscal 2020, 511
million of the increase in unrecognized tx benefits had an effect on the effective tax rave. We do not have any positions
for which 1t 15 reasomably possahle that the total amounts of unrecogmzed tax benefits wall sigmficantly increase or
decrease within 12 months.

We necrue interest, if apphicable, reloted to uncertain income tax positions m interest expense. Statutory penalnes, if
applicable, accrued with respect to uncenain mcome @x positions are recognized as an addition to the income tax
liatility. For each of fiscal 2020, 2019, and 2018, accrued interest was not sigmficant and no penaleies were accrued

Tav-relafed Comtingencies
Asaf Maorch 31, 2020, we remamed under TRS examination for fiscal 2020, fiscnl 2009, and fiscal 2008
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T tables below show the financial satement lioe sems and amounts ncluded i owr Consolidated Statements of Income
and in our Consolidated Balance Sheets under various related pany agrecments or relationships:

Wears ended March 31,
2000 200% 2018

Ned financing revenues:

Manutncturer's subvention and other revenues 5 2065 § 1,930 5 1590

Deprecianon on operating leases % {393 % (24) % (12}
Interest expense:

Credin support foes, interest and other cxpenses 5 96 % 9% 5 a5
Insurance carned premiums and contract revennes:

Insurance premiums and contract revenues -3 151 % 151 % 182
Tnvestment and other income, ner:

Imeresy and other income % 6 5 6 5 13
Expenses:

Operating and administmtive expenses b3 0z % o5 5 B0

Insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses! 5 - 5 (3 3 13)

I Amoumni ingludes the irmmsier of nsurance losses and loss adjustmeni expenses under o reinsurmnee conlmes
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Note 12 - Related Party Transactions (Continued)

March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis

Commercial paper 3 FaL -1 -
Investments in marketable securities

Commercial paper £ 60l 5 0
Finance receivahles, net

Accounts receivable 5 112 % 150

Deferred retail subvention ingome 5 (1oasy % {1,257)
Investments in operating leases, net

Investments i operating leases. net L3 (160 % 1

Deferred lease subventon uscome L (1941 8 {2,062)
(Hher asscis

MNotes receivable 5 L1768 8 6

(hher receivables, net 5 or 35 11
Liabilities:
Driher liabilities

Unearned affilinte insurance premiums and contract revenues 5 344 5 337

Chher payables, net 5 2 s 147

Moges pavahbe £ 3032 5 6

TMOC receives subvention payments from TMMA which resulis in a gross monthly subvension receivable. As of March
31, 2020 and 2019, the subvention receivable from TMNA was 51135 million and $171 milhon, respectively. We have a
master netting agreemient with TMNA which allows us to net sertle payments for shased services and subvention
transactions. Under this agreement, as of Murch 31, 2020 and March 31, 20109, respectively, we had a net amount
pavable to TMNA which s recosded in Other pavables, net in Other linblities,
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Note 12 - Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Firnancig Support Areamgenrerds witl Affiltotes

TMOC 15 party 1o a credn support agreement with TESC (the “TMCC Credit Sappon Agreement”™). The TMOC Credin
Support Agreement requires TFSC 1o mansai centnin ownesship, nel worth mamienance, and debi service provisions
with respeet 1o THVCC, but is not a guarantes by TFSC of any secunties o obligations of TMOCC. In conjunction with
this eredit suppont agreameit, TMOC has agreed to pay TFSC a semi-anainal fee based on a Axed rate appleed 1o (e
weighted average outstanding amount of securities entitled o credin suppon.

TCPR s the beneficanry of a credut support agreement with TFSC comaming provisions sumlar to the TMOC Credi
Suppori Aprecment described above.

In addivion, TMOC receives suppont from and provides financing suppon o TFSC and other alliliates in tse form of
promissory notes and vanous loan and credit facality agreements. As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, total financing suppan
available from alfilisies totaled approximately 58.4 billion and 385 billion, respectively, As of March 31, 2020 and
2019, total finoneing support avmlnble to affiliates totled approximately 568 billion and 55 4 billson,

respectively, These amounts i lude TMOC s increased financing suppon providad o Tovota Financial Services
Mexico, 5.A. de OV, of 1.5 balhion m May 2009, The amounts outstanding under these agreements are recorded in
Onher assets and Crher lighilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets ar March 31, 2020 and 2009,

[ March 2020, we drew upon our revelving eredit facihity with TMS for a principal amount of $3.0 billion with an
interest rate of |.86%, mauring on September 30, 2020, The amount is recorded in Caher liabilities on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet and will be used for peneral comporate purposes.

thher Financing Napport Provided re Affillates

TMOC provides wholesale Grancimg, real estote and workang cagntal loans to ceram dealerstups that were consoludnted
with another affiliate under the accounting guidance for vanable interest entities, TMOC also pays these dealers
ongination fees, These costs represent direct costs incunmed 1n connection with the acquesition of retml and lease
contracis, including subvention and other cash incentive programs,

TMOC has guaranteed the payments of principal and interest with respect 1o the bonds of manufacturing facilities of
certain affiliates. The nature, business purpese, and amounts of these puarantees are described in Note 9 = Commitmenis
and Contmpencies

TMCC and TFSE are parties 10 8 master parucipation agreement purssant 1o which TMOC agreed 1o purchase up to 360
million per vear of ressdentinl mongage loans onginated by TFSH thoy meet specified credst underaritg gusdelines. At
March 31, 2020 and 2019, we had 522 million and 523 million, respectively, in loan participations outstanding that had
been purclnsed by TMOC under this agreement,
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Note 12 - Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Kivrred Kervice Arrangenents with Affiliotes
TMCC is subject to the following shared service agreements:

TMOC wcurs costs under vonaars shared service agreements wath TMNA amd other affiliates. Services
provided by affiliates under the shared service agreements include certam technological and administrative
services, such as informmtion systems suppon, facilives, insurance coverage, human resources and other
corporate services. TMOC may also participate and incur costs in shared marketing effons with TMNAL

TMOC provides vanous services o s subsidianes and affiliages, including certain administrative and
corporaie services. operational suppon, information systems suppor, facilines, treasury, and vendor
ARAZETInL SETvices

TMOT provides vanous services to TFSB, mcludmg marketing, admimistrative, systems, amd operatsonal
support in exchamee for TFSE making avalable certain fimancial products and services 1o TMOC's
customers and dealers meeting TFSBs credit standards. TMOC 15 party to o master netiing agreement wiih
TF58, which allows TMOC 10 net settle paviments fin shared servaces between TMOC and TFSB,

TMCC 15 2 pany to expense reimbursement agreements with TFSB and TFSC related o costs moamed by
TMOC or these affiliates on behalf of the other panty m connection with TMOC"s provision of services 1o
these affilintes or the provision by these affiliates of certam financil products and services 1o our cusiomers
and dealers in suppon of TMOC s customer lovalty strategy and programs, and other brand and sales

FUpport

o7

216/318



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

Note 12 - Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Operatimnal Supygreed Arrangentertys with Affilintes

TMCC and TCPR provide vanous wholesale financing to dealers, whech result in our having payables io
TMMA and Toveta de Peero Bico Corp,

TMOL 15 party 1o a lease agreement with TMNA for cur headquarters facility in Plano, Texas, expiring i
2032, our Customer Service Center located in Cedar Rapids, lowa, expiring in 2029, and our Dallas Data
Cenler expiring in 2026, The lease commitments are desenibed i Note 9 < Commitments and
Continpencies,

In conjuncibon with the Apanil 1, 20019 adoption of ASL 2016-02, Leases, s desenbed in Mote | = Basis of
Presentation and Significam Accounting Policaes, we recorded ROLU aswers and lease halalines, which
in¢lusde amounts for facility leases with affiliates. As of March 31, 2020, vhe amounts for both affiliate
related ROU assets and lense liabilinies were 585 million,

Subwention reecivable represents mmounts due from TMMNA and other affiliates in support of retail and lease
subvention and other cash incentive programs offered by TMOC, Deferred subvention income represents the
unearmed portion of amounts received from these transactions, and manufacturers’ subvention and other
revienues primarily represent the camed pomion of such amounts.

Investment i operating keases includes contractual residual value support recerved from affilines wiiach wre
recognized as an offset to depreciation expense over the life of the contract.

TMOC 15 @ parcipating employer in cortpin retirement, post-retrrement miedscal care and hife msurnce
benefits sponsored by TMMNA. Refer 1o Note 10 - Pension and Other Benefit Plans for additional
informngson

TMOC is pamy to agrecments with TMNA and other affilistes relating to the wam member vehicle benefit
program, which allows term members 1o lease Tovola and Lexus vehicles on terms exclusive 1o the benefi
program. TAMNA serves as the chief adminisirator of the program, TMOC acquires and services team
member lenses emtered into after the third quarter of fiscal 2018, A porton of the vehicles used for the team
maember vehicle benefit program are acquired from TRMNA. TMOC receives a per vehicle contribution from
parmcipating affilintes to assist with the costs of its contnbution 1o the benefit program, and TMOC pays o
per vehicle particrpation fee to TMMNA to participate in the benefit program.

Affiliate inswrance premiums and contract revenues primarnily represent revenues from TMIS for coverage
and related administranive services provided 1o TMNA and affiliates. This includes contractunl indemmniny
covernge for limited warranties on certified Tovow and Lexus pre-owned vehicles and related adminisimative
services for TMNA s certified pre-owned vehicle program and umbrella habiliey policy. TS provides
winidtiella liability insurmice to TMMNA and alfiliates covenng certmn dullir value lavers of risk above vanous
primary or self-insured retentions. OUn all layers in which TMIS has provided coverage, 99 percent of the nsk
luas been coded a reansurer,
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13 — Fair Value M r

Fair value 15 defined as the price that would be receved 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an erderly
transaction between markei participants af the measurement date. In order o determine fair value of our assers and
labilities, we use quoted prices for identical or samilar instruments, otherwise we wtilize valuation models with
chservable or caboulnted mputs. The use of observable quotes for identical or similar instruments and the use of
unobservahle imputs 15 reflected 0 the faar valug heerarchy assessment disclosed in the tables within this Note as Level |,
2 and 3 defined below. The availability of observable inputs can vary based upon the financial mstrument and other
factors, such as instrument type, market liguadity and other specific chamctenstics particular 1o the financial
instrument. To the extent that a valuation 1= based on models or mputs: that are less observable or unobservable m the
inarket, the determination of fur value requires additional judgment by management, W use prices and inputs that e
current as of the measurement date, mcluding dunng penods of market disruption. In penods of market disrupoon, the
avinlability of prices and inpins may be reduced for cenann Rnancial instrumeits. This conditon could result mna
financial instrument being reclassified from Level | to Level 2 or from Level 2 o Level 3.

Level 13 Quoted {unachusted) prices i active markets g are accessble at the measurement date for identical,
unresinicied nssets or Habilities.

Level 23 Quoted prices m active markets For similar assets and liabilities, or inputs that are observable, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full twenm of the asset or hability,

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supporbed by linke ar no market activity and may require significant judgment in
order to determme the fair value of the assets and liabilines.

Vaaluarrioee Aafiictmenis

We may make valuntion adjustments 1o ensure that financial instruments are recorded mt fair value. These adjustments
inchude amounas 1o reflect coumerpamy credit qualiy, owr own ereditwonhiness, as well as constraines due o market
illgquichty or unohservable parameters,

Recurring Falr Value Measurennenss
Cash Egiivelents and Reserigcred Cavh Eguivelenis

Tlse fasr value of cash equavalents and resincied cash equivalems approximaies the carrvang value and these instruments
are classified as Level | within the far valoe hieearchy,

Tnvestmenis in prarkehable securitics

We estumate the value of our AFS debt securities wsing observed rransaction prices, independent third-pany pricing
valuation venders, and internal valuation models.

We may hold mvestments i pctively traded open-end and private placement equity investments. 'Whese the equity
investments produce a daily net asset value that is quoted i an sctive market, we use this value o determine the far
value of the equity investment and classify the investment as Level | wathin the fair value erarchy, The for value of
equity mvestments that produce a daily net asset value that 1s not quoted m an active market 1s esttmated using the net
asset value per share (or its equivalent) as practical expedient and are excluded from leveling in the fair value hierarchy,

In addimion, we may bold mdividual secuniies where valuation methodologies and mputs to valuation models depend on
the secunity type, thus they may be classified differenily in the leveling hierarchy, Where possable, quoted prices in active
markets for identical or similar secunities are used to determine the fair value of the mvestment seounities: those secunitics
are classified as Level | or 2, respectively. Where quoted prices in active markets are not available, we use various
valuntion models for cach asset class that are consistent with what market participants use. The inputs and assumptions to
the models are derived from market abservable sources meluding: benchmark vields, reponed trades, broker'dealer
quotes, issucr spreads, benchmark secunities, bids, offers, and other market-relmed data. These investments are gencrmlly
chassified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy, however depending on the significance of the unobservable inpuis
they may also be classified as Level 3.
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— Fair h

Dervaiives

‘We estimate the fair value of our denvatives using indusiry standard valuation models thar require observahle market
inputs, includmy murket prices. mterest rtes, foregn exchange rates. volanhites. counterparty credit nisk, our own non-
performance risk and the contractual terms of the denivative mstinanents. We consider counterparty credit nsk and our
own non-performance nsk through credin valuatson sdjustiments,

For derivatives that trade in liguid markets, model inputs can generally be verified and do not require significant
management judgment, These dervative imsnoments are clussified as Level 2 withan the fair vishue hieraschy,

Certnn other denvanve manseetons trade i less liguid markets wath lonted pocing informason. For such denvatves,
key inpuits 1o the valuation process include guotes from counterparties and other market data used 10 comoborate and
adjust values where appropriate. Other market data mcludes values obtamed from a market parncipant thal serves as a
third pany valustion vendor, These derivative instruments are classified as Level 3 within te Bar valoe hierarchy,

Nonrecureing Fair Valwe Measurenenty

Monrecurring fair value measurements include Level 1 net finance receivables that are not measured at fair value on a
recurning basis but are subject to faor value adjustments unlizing the far value of the underlying collateral when there s
evidence of impairment. Moarecurrisne fair value items as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 were net significant,

Impaired Dvaler Fimenee Receivables

For finance receivahles within the dealer products portiolio segment for which there is evidence of impairment, we may
measure impairment based on discounted cash flows, the loan’s observable market poce or the fair value of the
underlying collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. If the loan is collateral-dependent, the fair values of impaired
fimance recervables are reported at fair value on o nonrecurmng basis. The methods wsed to estimate the far valee of the
underlying collateral depends on the specific class of finance receivable. For finance receivables within the wholesale
class of finance recervables, the collateral value 15 genemlly based on wholesale market value or hguidaton vilue for new
and used vehicles. For finance receivables within the real estate class of finance receivables, the collateral value is
generally based on appraisals. For finance recervables within the workimg capital class of finace receivables, the
collateral value is generally based on the expected liquidation value of the underlving dealership asseis. Adjusiments
may be performed in corcumstances where market comparables are not specific 1o the attnbutes of the specific collateral
or appraisal information may not be reflective of cument market conditions due o the passage of time and the occurmence
of market events since recerpt of the informotion. As these valunfions utiliee uncbservable nputs, our impaired finance
receivables are classificd as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Impertred Bewad Recelvables

Reail finance recervables greater than 120 days past due are measured at fair value based on e fuir value of the
widerlviiig collsteral less costs 1o sell. The Gt value of collateral is based an the curient average selling prices for hke
wehicles at wholesale used vehicle auctions.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

— Fair h

Firancical Instraments Not Carried ar Fair Value
Flimrnee Receivables

Our finance recervables consist of retail leans and dealer financimg loans, which are compnsed of wholesale, real estne
and working capital financing. Retail finance receivables are primanly valued using a secunnzation madel that
ingorporates expected cash Mows, Cash flows expecied 1o be collecied are estimated using contractual prngipal and
interest payments mijusted for specific factors, such as prepavments, extensions, defvult rates, loss sevenity, credit scores,
and collateral tvpe. The secunieation model wtilizes quoted secondary market rues o avialable, or estmated market
rates thal incorporaie management's best estimate of Invesior sssumptions about (he portfolio. The dealer financing
pertfolio is valued using a discounted cash Now model. Discount rates are desived based on market rates for equivalem
portfolio bond ratings. As these valuations utilize uncbservable mputs, our finance recervables are classified as Level 3
within the fair valee hierarchy,

Unsecured podes and foans payvable

The Taar wadue of commercial paper is gssumed o approximate the camyenge value due o ats shon duration and generally
negligble credit nsk. We validate this assumption by recaloulating the fair value of our commercial paper using gquoted
market rates, Commercial paper is classefied as Level 2 wathin the fair value heraschy,

Other unsecured notes and loans payable are primarily valsed wsing current market rtes and credit spreads for debt with
similar maturties, Cur valuation models utibze observable inputs such as siandard indusiry curves; therefore, we classify
these wnsecured notes and loans pavables as Level 2 within the i valee lnemschy. When observable inputs are nog
avalable fior all assumptions, we estimate the Fair value using internal assumptions such as volatlity and expected credst
losses. As these valutions utiliee unobservable mputs, we classify these wisecured niodes oo banns pavable as Level 3
within the fair value hierarchy

Secureed noves amd fogns payebile

Fair vatlue 15 esumated based on current marke rates and eredit spreads for debt with stmlar maturities. 'We also use
interial assemptions, meludmy prepayvment speeds and expected credil losses on the underlying secunbized assets,
estimate the timing of cash lows 1o be paid on these instruments. As these valuations wtilize unobservable mputs, our
secured nedes unel beans pavables are classilied as Level 3 within the fair value luerarchy.

Chther Hubilittes

Onar other liabilities mclude notes payable to related parties, As these notes are short tenm i nature, the carrying value is
deemed to approximate fur value and they are classified as Level 3 within the fior value hierarchy.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)
Mote 13 — Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
Finangial assets and finpncial labalities are classified in their entrety based on the lowest level of inpur that 15 significan
to the fair value measurement. The following tables swmmarize our financial assets and financial liabalitics measured at
Fair walue on a recwrming basts by level within the fair value hisrarchy except for cenmin mwvestments that are measwred o
fair value using the net asset value per share (or its oquivalent) as a practical expedient and are excluded from the leveling
information provided in the tables below. Fair value amownts presented below are inended to permit reconciliation of the
fair value hierarchy o the amounts presented in our Consalidated Balance Shects.

March 31, X120
Lomnler ity
neiting & Faar
Livel | Level 2 Lewel 3 vollateral valike
Iovestmonts i marketable secunbies
Avaalalbe-for-sale dibd seouriies
U5, povermmeni aned spency obligafines 5 174 % I - & - § 176
Mumicipal dehi socurities - 11 - - 1
Ceriilicates of deposit . 240 . . 1
Commergial paper - il - - |
Corporate debt sccumises . 197 . . 197
Moetgape-hacked sepuriiies:;
115 povernment Agency . Ly . . A
Maon-apency residential - - 1 - 1
Wem-agency conmerncial - . 45 N 45
Assgt-backed sociriiics - - 72 - fr
Mvaalable- for-sale debt secunites wital 174 1, 1 1I% - 14l
LEquuty mvesimenis
Fixeal o minial funds:
Towed income iuoiwl fmds mensured ot
el asset valas T4
Tavinl retwmm hoesd s 1.67% a - = IATY
Fquity imvesimenis dokal 1,675 - - - 2418
lovestmenls in makctahle seccuntics winl | a7 1, 0 115 - AED
Derivative ssels
linterest pale swags - 1410 - - LAl
Foreign currency swaps . n . 27
Cennterparty noibmg and collaeral - - (13860 (13860
Dervaibive asscts lotal - 1 AXT - i1 3586 51
Assels wl Cair valee 1,847 2 546 118 ] 3A71
Ienvative lisbibives;
lmerest rale saaps - (] - . PEEM)
Fongagn cusrency swaps - (1.2 - (1.2
Connierpariy moiimg amd collaleral . - 071 3071
Pamhilities o foir snboe a (LS RET] = 30T (45
TNt aensets a1 Fir vl 5 LE4T § (3T % 1% 5 | GRS % A2
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements {Continued)
March 31, 21w
Caminberparty
netting & Fair
Lewel Level 2 Level 3 collaleral villuss
Imvesimonls m marketshle seoumtios:
Avalahbe- for-sale debst seourities
U5, povermmeni azed agency obligafivms 5 M 5 18 5 - 5§ - § r s
Mumicipal debi securilies - 11 - - 1
Certaficates of deposit . 1] E Sik
Commensd pape E gl - - T
Corporsie debt secomiies - 162 . . 142
Mortgape-hecked socatise:
115, government ngency E 15 . - LES
Muon-apeney residential - - 1 - 1
Nonsapency commencial E . 113 - £
Aui-hackiod seowiilies - - 53 - 53
Avmialfe-for-sale debt securises (sl 196 ki 93 . i3
Ligmity ivesimenis:
Fined neoms mutual funds:
Tmwed income ivoival funds messured ot
el asscd value GBI
Testanl retam hond funids 1586 - - - 158
Figuity tmvestmenits flal KT - - - 1175
Investimenits i marketah le secunties tlal 17RO ks pX) . Pl
Dervative nsscts:
Ireres pale swagn - 471 1 . an
Fareign currency swaps . 2 . 12
Comnterparty mettmyg and sollateral - - - [453) [ELES]
Dherivalive azsets Lidal - 543 1 (453} il
Assels o Cuir valee 17RO O LE ] [ARTy 3 ah
Therivative liabibilses:
Ieres] rale swaps - (L] . - 622
Fustedgn cugrency swape - (TRE) - - (THE)
Conmberparty mollmg, amd callaleral = . . L5l 1381
Linhilitses ai fnir vnboe - il 40T7y - 1,381 P2
et amscts a1 Tmr vihue b I.7THD % (214 ¥ s S HIE 5 L33
. S
113
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)
BNote 13 - Fair Value Measurements (Continned)
Trunsfers between levels of the fur value hierarchy are recogmeed at the end of their respective reporting

periods. Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the vears ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 resulied
from changes w the transparency of inputs and were not significant,

The following tables summanze the rollforward of all assets and labilities measured an far value on a recurmng basis
l,d.ing a.'igniﬁl:.hh! ||n¢b$l.1'\'.nb1: ir!pul.zr

s el i 1]

Tet e et
Avialible b dk A mowse T Rl ihabibian

Tl
At iviarlable: tmorrd
Fchrd vl B o

|

TR EAN TR T -
T otall paems Chowiesk

el il e e (5] (L]
i b et gt ol v bt I+ i 1]
P, mosnors ko, wndl s lemmess

[P, 10 - "
[R—

Sakew .

i ik [T} [it1
Trmwelers s Lrvrd #

Trasfers v ol vl ¥ .

B b, Mk i, 5030 ¥ dn B i B [T
The s ol chisnge
ewrakncd pums f lsacy ) m baked
e ]
lethel o iipectnng hiir i WM 1]}

Ve pmded bl 11 ml-

j — i
Nvaalible By il Sl sormriin i Cawmireat

frm e d bakal Bt wibe deba e
L Er s e =
Fast valier Agmd | 018 L] nos L L [ LN |
T ol s, (isviamb
Frchadoal w1 mot . . H
[ T P Iy — i i
Parchorscs, iswasrers. b ol wtbonaes
Pears boram, i L ] an
[ .
Rabrs - (L] i
T (1] [§L1]
Tramitimy mw Lered B
T imwsley omsd sl el ¥ = .
Wanr b, Wlarchi 11 2019 1] & 3 I ] o % ] ]
[
[= PR A e B )
o v el e et
bkl i e Hperbmp dear b1 . O | )

-

: Al
an L] (L]

Level 3 Fair Value Measwremenis

The Level 3 financial assets and hiobalites recorded at farr value which are subject 1o recurnmg wsl noorecurring fair
value measurement, and the comespondimg change i the fair value measurements of these assets and labilines, were not

sigmficant to our Consolidated Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements of Income as of and for the vears ended March
31, 2020 and 2019,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

— Fair h
Fivncial Fnstrapeeiy
The following tables provide imformation abowt assets and liabilities not camsed at fair value on a recurnmg basis on our
Consolidated Balance Sheeis:
March 31, 2020
Carrvimg Tostul Faur
value Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 valse
Financial assets
Finance recenvables, net
Retaul loan § 58360 5 - 5 - § 5733 § 5.3
Wholesale F672 - - 637 9637
Rieal estate 454 - - 4,140 4,140
Working capital 3,305 . - 2,511 2811
Financial labalities
Unsecured notes and loans payahle § EBIT2 5 - & B4 § 360 & H2080
Secured notes and loans pavable 14,568 . - 14,6038 14,608
March 31, 2019
Carmyimg Total Fair
vislue Level | Level 2 Level 3 vailue
Financial assets
Fmance recewvables, net
Retail lnan 5 53013 5 - 5 - § 53247 § 5347
Wholesale 10293 - - 10,3659 10.36%
Keal estate 4550 - - 4534 4534
Working capital 2,510 . . 2,554 2.554
Finangial linbilives
Unsecured notes and loans payable 3 3051 % - & 7056 § 21313 % 81369
Secured notes and loans payahle 12401 - - 12428 12,428

The carying vahie of each class of finance recervables includes accrued interest and deferred fees and codts, nel of
deferred income and the allownnee for credit losses, Fimance reccivables, net exchedes related party trmnsactions, for
which the fair value approximates the earrving valwe, of % 109 million and 5148 million o Mareh 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Fair values of related party finance receivables, net are classified as Level 3 within the far value hierarchy.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 14 — Segment Information
Cur reponable sepments me Finance and Insurance opemations, Fmance opermtions nclude retml, leasing, and dealer
fieancing provided to authorized dealers and their customers i the US. and Puenio Rico. Insurance operations are

performed by TMIS and its subsidianes
Financial information for our reporiable operating segments, which mcludes allocaed corporale expenses, is summarized
as follows
Year endod March 31, 2020
Finange Insurapse Imtetcompany
CoPEralig OpeTalions clitninalions Tolal

Todal Mmsncing revenuss 5 1202 5 - 5 1 12025
Depreciation on opemting leases G AN - - [
Inierest expense 184 - (K] pil
et Minsncing revenues 2355 - 20 2375
Insuranes eamed premiuens and contrecl revenses - Q33 - Q33
Investment and other income, nel 1545 187 {2y iz
et Mnancing and oiher revemues 2500 1120 - 3,630
Expenses:

Provision for credit losses Sy - - 0

Ciperating and admimisirative experises 1197 &1 ] - 1561

Insurance lesses and Boss adjustment cxpenses - 453 . 455
Tonal expenses. 1747 "9 - 1 il
Income before inoome laxes m LU - 1024
Prowision lor moome tnxes kL 72 - 111
et income ] 4 8 Xy % - % i
Tortnl msscis 5 12108 § 5520 3 (1,045 5 1253555
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
ROTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

Mote 14 = Segment Tnformation (Continued)
Year ended hI?-;h 31, 2019

Finance Insurance Inlercomparny
Cpcmilions | _ opovstions chimmations Tomd

Total ﬁmmg TCVERLCS L1 11 =HE 5 - % - % |1, =400
Depreciation on operating leasss 6,900 . . 6,0
Interest expense 2769 - 1221 747
el financing revenues 132 : 22 1,554
Insurance camed premiums and contract revenues - Gl - Sk
Invesimeni and other ingome, nel | EH 26 (22} i
Met ﬁnm:h'tg and oiber revemues 215 1,030 . 1180
Expenses:

Provision for creddit bosses 2 - - in

Operating and sdmimisirative expenses 1 AK3H 47 - L3485

Irsurance losses and boss adjustment expenses - Hi - el
Todal expenses 1AL Ta3 - 1.203
Ineome before income nxes THb rip) - 9T
Provision lor imcoeme tnxes 147 33 - [F.
Wet incame ] 93 3 202 5 = 5 95
Toaal asscts 5 126l5 5 5066 % (1 005) 5 116,516

Year endad Mareh 31, 2018

Finnrge Insurnmce Insercompany
PETHIONS peiions climunai Toial

Toanl fimancing revenues 5 LU i - 5 - 5 16,717
Depreciation on operting leases T4 - - 041
Inicrest expense | ®hd - [h2) 185
el Nnaneing revenues 1513 - 12 125
Insurance camed premiums and conrad revenues - ER2 - RHY
Investment and other income, nel 1411 124 (123 257
el Mnancing and oiher revemies 1,953 Lot - pa 2
Expenses.

Provesson for credin bosacs il - - L]

Operating and admmstfative expenses 1,028 i - 1,347

Irsirance losses and boss adjustment expenses - 424 - 42%
Tonal expenses 1,429 754 - 1IR3
Incorme befone income iaxes 54 257 - TRl
{Benefin] provision for incoms s {26540 25 - (2.62%)
Nel income 5 3% 5 a1 5 - 5 1410
Todnl ssscis 5 116942 % 4680 5 {1AE?) & 1201 546

17
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars m mallions)

Note 14 — Segment Information (Continued)
Frsuramee nperafions

Thee Insurance operations segment offers vehicle and pavisent protection products on Tovors, Lexus and otler domestic
and import vehicles that mre sold by dealers along with the sale of a velucle.

Tnvirance Farned Promiuvmy

Revenues from provading coverape under various contractual agreements are recognized over the term of the coverage in
relotion to the timimg and kevel of anocipated claims and admimstrutive expenses. Revenues from insurance policies, net
of premiums ceded o rensurers, are eamed over the temms of the nespective policies in proporton to the estimated boss
development. Manugement relies on histoncal loss experience as o basis for establishing camimgs factors used o
fecopnize revenue over the term of the contract or palicy,

Inynranee Comtract Revenies

‘We receive the contractually determined dealer cost at the incepiion of the contract. Revenue is then deferred and
recopmized over the term of the contract according to earmimgs factors established by management that are based upon
historical loss experience. Comracts sold mnge in temm from 3 to 120 months and are typically cancellable ar any

time. The effect of subsequent concellations 15 recorded as an offset to uneamed contract revenees in Other Babilites on
car Consolidated Balance Shees.

For the veor ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, approximately §4 percent of Insurance eamed premiums and
contract revenues i the Insurance operations secment were accountad for under ASL 2014-09,

The Insurance operations segment defers contractually determimed incentives paid to denlers as contract costs for selling
vehicle and payment protection products. These costs are recorded in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
and are pmortized to Operatmy and administratve expenses on the Consolidated Smtements of Income using o
methodelogy consestent with the recognition of revenue. The amount of capitalized dealer incentives and the related
amortization was i sigmiicant (o owr consolidated financal satements as of and for the vears ended March 31, 2020
and 2019,

We buid £2.2 billsai aisd 52.4 bellion of unearned insurance premuums and contrict revenues from contracts with
customers inchuded in Other Liabilites on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 20019 and March 31, 2020,
respectively, We recopnized S673 milhon of the unearmed mnounts in Insurmnce eamed premums and contrcl revenues
in our Consolwdated Statements of Income dunng fiscal 2020, We expect to recognize 8s revenue approximately 5700
mmallion w fscal 2021 and 51.7 ballon thereafler

Tspranee Losses and Loss Adiustmen Expenses

Insurance besses and low adjustment expenses include amounts paid and scerued for loss events that ase known and have
been recorded as claims, estimates of losses meumed but not reported based on actiuanal estimates and hisioncal loss
development parerns, wnd boss sdiustment expenses that are expected to be icurred i comnection with etting and
paving these claims.

Accruns for unpaid losses, losses incurned but net reported, and loss adjustment expenses arg included in Oiher habilites
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. These accruals ansing from contractual sgreements entered mto by TMIS are mot
significant as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, Estimated habalives are reviewed regularly, and we recognuee any
adjestments i the penods mowhich they are determined. 1§ antcipated losses, loss adjustment expenses, and unpmorted
acepsition and maintenance costs exceed the recorded unearned premium, a premium defliciency is reconnized by first
chorging any unnmoriized scquisition costs to expense and then by recording a habality for any excess deficiency,

Risk Transfer

Our insurance opertions transfer cerain risks 10 protect us agamst the impact of unpredictable high seventy losses. The
anmouns recoverable from remsurers and ether companies that assume liabilines relating 1o our Insurance operatsons ane
determined w o munner consistent with the related remsurance or nisk tansfer sgreement.  Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers and other companies on unpaid losses are recorded as a receivable bun are not collectible untl the bosses are
pard. Kevenues related to nsks transferned are recognized on the sane basis as the related revenaes from the underlying
apreements, Covered losses are recorded as a reduction to Insurance losses and loss adjustment cxpenses.
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Note 15 - Selecied Quarterly Financial Daia

Unandited
First Second Thard Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quaner

Yenr ended March 31, 2020
Finnmcing revenses:

Operating lease 5 L84 8 2187 8 2212 5 LI82

Retzil ARG HiK 6] B30

Dealer 1540 183 171 152
Total I'm.'.n'l.l;mg FEVENUES 2 a63 A00E 3044 kR ]

Depreciation on operating lexses 1,625 1,583 1.712 [ L]

Interest expense L A1 T35 T64
Met Mnancing revenucs 21 v T EEL]
Insurance camed preminms and contract revenucs 2 232 231 21
Investment and other income, nel 118 a7 57 0
Met financing revemues amd other revenwes QR 1151 A B2
Expenses:

Provision for eredit losses T3 ] 128 £l

Operating and sdministrative 337 A5k L 4tk

Insurance losses and loss adjusimeni expenses 113 115 116 111
Total cxpenses 525 534 AL bl
Income (loss) before income axes 463 GlT 215 {271}
Provasion (benefit) for income xes 104 15% 14 {185)
Netincome (loss) 5 35 5 45 5 18] § (8l
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5 n
Unaudited
Furst Secand Thard Fourth
quarier quarier Quaricr quaner

Year ended March 31, 201%:
Financing revennes:

Operating lcase 5 21 5 LI6T % 2212 5 2,188

Retail 538 547 278 575

Dealer 175 176 174 182
Tatal fmancing revenoes I HiG ) 2 OnH 2 i
Depreciation on operating leascs 1,766 1662 1,717 1,764
Intenest expense iRl oz filrd ik
Met financing revenues £ SMin 552 518
Insuranee camed premiums and contrag! revenues . ) 2246 2% )
Investment and other inconse, net Rl S 4 128
Met financing revenues and other revenues [ K wddy nid
[xpenses:

Provision for credin losses & 6T (A1) (1L

Opermting and sadminisirative 34 34 M7 Iy

Insurance losses and loss altuqrn:rd CXPENsCs 125 nx (124 (L]
Total expenses 518 527 363 375
Income before incoms tixes 14 281 283 2949
Provision for income laxes i BT [ 4
Met income 5 B § 14 5 X4 5 295

1zn
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2019
2019
2019 14
2019 19
2019 11 22
2019 14
2019 12

2019 12 26
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)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( )| 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510 | 30,225,681 | 29,929,992
( ) 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
( ) 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
( ) 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
( )| 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076 | 20,565,210 | 21,241,851
( )| 47,427,507 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249 | 51,936,949 | 52,680,436
() 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92 7,252.17
() 741.36 605.47 842.00 650.55 735.61
() 735.36 599.22 832.78 645.11 729.50
() 35.3 35.9 37.2 37.3 38.1
() 13.8 10.6 13.7 9.8 10.4
() 8.0 10.0 8.1 10.0 8.8
( ) 4,460,857 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
( ) 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,607,241 3,150,861
( ) 423,571 375,165 449,135 540,839 397,138
( ) 2,939,428 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
) 348,877 364,445 369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 1 [ 86,843] [ 86,005] [ 84,731]| [ 87,129]| [ 86,219]|
)
2019
2017 2018
( )
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)
112 113 114 115 116
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443 | 12,634,430 | 12,729,731
¢ | 2.28s,001| 1,801,736 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,121 | 1,735,365
¢ | 1.810,370| 1,520,011 | 1,859,312 | 1,806,824 | 1,424,062
« ) 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401
( 3,337,907 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997
( 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( )| 10,859,443 | 11,365,784 | 12,040,947 | 12,450,274 | 12,590,890
( | 16,100,209 | 16,592,167 | 17,200,436 | 17,716,903 | 17,809,246
) 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72 4,225.55 4,377.19
210 210 220 220 220
, ) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
52 105 158 211 264
, () ( 26.0) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) (105.5) (132.0)
) 581.08 506.96 628.31 657.10 504.25
() 575.64 500.65 620.85 649.89 500.27
() 67.4 68.5 70.0 70.3 70.7
() 17.2 13.8 15.9 15.5 11.4
) 10.2 11.9 10.9 9.9 12.9
() 36.1 41.4 35.0 33.5 43.6
O 72,721 73,875 74,890 74,515 74,132
[ [10371]]  [10700))  [10.905) [ 11.122])| [ 10,795]]
D) 735 771 89.0 87.6 90.4
( () ( 89.2) (102.3) (118.5) (112.5) (101.8)
TOP1X)
D) 8,637 7,156 7,782 7,502 7,929
D) 5,710 4,975 5,605 6,079 5,941
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 115
114
)
( )
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@
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
( 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906 2,200,557
( 330,190 215,447 280,769 313,306 281,329
( 232,719 148,687 509,930 222,308 223,836
( 82,594 117,191 439,270 267,214 103,547
( 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403 3,005,729
( 21,379,657 | 22,188,626 | 22,636,927 | 23,660,621 | 24,574,145
( ) | 1.372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41 | 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41
() 148,181.83 94,674.94 | 324,692.91 | 141,552.90 |  142,525.61
() = = - - =
() 10.1 10.2 11.9 12.1 12.0
() 11.0 6.7 20.5 8.0 7.7
() — — — — —
( — J— J— J— —
( P J— J— J— P
( _ J— - J— _
( - J— J— J— -
) 9,670 10,172 10,364 10,634 11,469
(1,536) (1,548) (1,450) (1,540) (1,542)
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 2019
2018
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
41,846 39,854 58,411 75,532 67,138
30,975 28,947 47,297 63,027 52,635
27,192 26,160 42,983 57,665 43,866
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
556,311 581,408 624,560 580,459 621,868
562,541 589,136 633,111 586,472 629,775
354,225.54 | 370,206.23 | 397,682.51 | 369,601.93 |  395,968.40
_ . . 63,674.00 .
(63,674.00)
17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92 27,931.86
98.9 98.7 98.6 99.0 98.7
5.0 4.6 7.1 9.6 7.3
— — — 173.4 —
86 79 73 85 99
@17 (18) (16) (14) @17

(

)
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)
)
635,401 100
)
16,500 100
Plano, ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
)
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Amsterdanm, )
( Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 137,350
100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, )
New Soth Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
Bangkok, Thailand (876‘11)
16,600 )
4,100,000 100
53
)
) (
)
( )

10
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(€))
2020 31
)
2,135
3,419
1,227
4,589
C ) 99
11,469 (1,542)
)
( )
)
«C )
@)
2020 31
) ) ) C )
99(17) 43.8 5.8 9,933
) )
( ) )
(©)
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ooooooo
2,005 586
2,478 339 2,813 319
2,238 15
671 83
511 104 526 103 438 137

« )

1,953 176

144 104
« )
5,153 246 1,396
68

« )

828 84

59 159

( )

4,069 78

947 101
24 5,741 9,135 9,219
19 3,865 83 1,875
21 5,684 8,011
7,550 11 418 461 10 5,265
57 1,123
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) )
1,765,755 8.5
13,437,659 0.2
1,258,545 1.3
5,249,539 1.8
21,711,499 0.0
)
) )
195,315 9.9
1,515,398 1.7
82,845 11.4
406,998 2.0
2,200,557 2.7
)

51
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( )
2,032,682
2020 31
( ) ()
4,294,527 100.0
4,294,527 100.0
2020 31
( )
()
1,925
839 11,516 478 12,834 (323)
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3)
2020 31
( )

( ()
(Plano 13,388 | 18,156 | 1,572 | 33,117 §é§3§
Texas, U.S.A.)

()
2,409
()
€Y)
(2020 2021 31 )
1,878,641
23,956
@
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(€H)
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 _ _
)
(©)
©)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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)
(2020 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2020 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2020 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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1964 19

1999

2017

2019

2020

1961 23

1985

2017

2018
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2019

2019

1948 10 23

1972

2001

2004
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2015

2018

2018

2018

2018
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1968 18

1991

2020

2020

2020

1974 12

1997

2017 11

2019

1959

1982

2011

2017

2018

2020

(

)

1963 25

1985

2018

2018

2019
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)

1968

1991

2017

2018

2019

2019

(

)

2021
2024
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72 - 72 —

94 33 109 30
166 33 182 30
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@
( )
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
571,170 743,542
, 15,729,259 , 15,864,958
1,497,388 1,552,013
276,631 744,871
566,467 705,958
176,266 224,773
18,464,651 19,386,571
C ) , 4,494,000 , 4,294,527
9,474 28,759
4,503,474 4,323,286
36,884 37,819
365,419 415,387
290,192 411,079
655,611 826,467
5,195,969 5,187,573
23,660,621 24,574,145
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( )
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
1,130,702 1,236,789
) 1,739,114 2,047,580
2,289,804 2,377,561
3,871,603 4,102,796
32,471 35,880
1,223,156 1,241,254
10,286,853 11,041,863
6,655,252 6,474,307
, 3,052,704 3,243,564
686,236 676,286
17,398 15,845
15,877 16,653
52,893 99,894
10,480,363 10,526,551
20,767,217 21,568,415
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,653,758 2,877,595
2,892,183 3,116,020
1,184 65
3,217 1,221
43,981 157,597
39,579 156,440
40,799 46,150
2,893,403 3,005,729
23,660,621 24,574,145
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( )
( 2018 2019

2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
2,141,906 2,200,557
1,435,668 1,428,139
706,237 772,417
424,429 524,541
281,807 247,876
— 305
3,651 6,308
25,606 25,070
3,092 2,926
32,350 34,610
298 486
234 _
318 671
851 1,157
313,306 281,329
— 3,919
— 3,919
5,535 —
— 708
5,535 708
307,771 284,539
53,897 57,604
27,196 5,159
81,093 62,764
226,678 221,775
4,369 2,061
222,308 223,836
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( )
( 2018 (2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
226,678 221,775
1,745 1,249
207 1,618
41,592 113,202
2,594 2,156
40,535 118,227
267,214 103,547
262,499 106,975
4,714 3,427
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2018 2019 a1 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
13,773 13,773
78,525 159,900 2,531,449 2,769,875
100,000 100,000
222,308 222,308
— 122,308 122,308
78,525 159,900 2,653,758 2,892,183
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310
661 14,435
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 28,771 2,718,875
100,000
222,308
1,745 550 37,895 40,190 12,028 52,219
1,745 550 37,895 40,190 12,028 174,528
1,184 3,217 43,981 39,579 40,799 2,893,403
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2019 2020 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,653,758 2,892,183
223,836 223,836
— — 223,836 223,836
78,525 159,900 2,877,595 3,116,020
1,184 3,217 43,981 39,579 40,799 2,893,403
223,836
1,250 1,995 113,615 116,860 5,350 111,510
1,250 1,995 113,615 116,860 5,350 112,326
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 3,005,729
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(2020

31 )

oOoOooodn

2021
31,783

31 )
2022

(2020 31 )



(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
1,268,721 1,240,224
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
38,297 70,646
19,580 18,503
428 899
428 899
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
3,429,411 3,781,478
50,211 40,856
12,527 12,201
3,492,150 3,834,535
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
3,826,278 3,966,358
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
1,912,312 2,004,027
609,694 621,632
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
59,166 11,955
933,641 1,048,844
884,746 925,164
23,331 20,361
29,787 14,264
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(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
1,793,475 1,957,684

(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
1,745,592 1,795,904
609,694 621,632
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( 2018 ( 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
88,982 92,216
97,736 157,321
( 2018 ( 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
( )23,414 ( )19,521
( 2018 ( 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
588 1,939
1,248 92
1,836 2,031
91 782
1,745 1,249
1,021 1,163
1,318 1,153
297 2,317
89 698
207 1,618
41,592 113,202
2,594 2,156
40,535 118,227
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( )
( 2018 2019 31
() 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
(1)
( ) )
2019 18 100,000 63,674 | 2019 28 2019 19
)
(2019 2020 31
) 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
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@
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
648,817 649,404
478,293 469,047
99,535 101,031
1,027,576 1,017,421
@
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
169,741 198,314
150,937 161,331
121,974 123,399
49,295 67,187
16,266 24,611
1,573 1,756
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
248,718 250,591
179,676 175,503
125,662 125,356
64,209 67,624
26,021 24,857
4,528 5,470
( )
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
734,100 726,749
737,077 735,365
1,471,177 1,462,114
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« )
(2019 31 )
)
(6H) 571,170 571,170 —
@ 15,729,259
) 146,536
15,582,723 15,746,872 164,149
) ( 1,019,094
) 26,041
993,053 1,068,214 75,160
(©)) 588,943 588,943 —
17,735,890 17,975,200 239,310
[€H) 1,130,702 1,130,702 —
[©) 3,871,603 3,871,603 —
®) 8,945,057 9,069,745 124,687
“ ) 4,791,819 4,812,415 20,596
18,739,183 18,884,467 145,283
)
49,100 50,490 99,590
927 2,362 1,434
50,027 48,128 98,156
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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(2020 31 )
)
(€H) 743,542 743,542 —
@ 15,864,958
) 189,569
15,675,388 15,772,971 97,582
&) ( 1,082,965
) 30,600
1,052,365 1,135,276 82,911
(O] 1,098,262 1,108,003 9,741
18,569,558 18,759,793 190,235
€)) 1,236,789 1,236,789 —
() 4,102,796 4,102,796 —
®) 8,851,868 8,885,639 33,770
() ) 5,291,144 5,303,940 12,795
19,482,599 19,529,165 46,566
)
161,679 21,584 183,263
1,011 2,815 1,803
162,690 18,769 181,459
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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2019 31 2020 31

53,107 61,997
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(2019 31 )
)
571,170 — —
6,403,950 8,411,615 729,508
363,834 638,032 5,298
19,319 11,116 16,277
554 6,335 22,190
158,187 — 386
178,062 17,452 38,853
7,517,017 9,067,100 773,660

(2020 31 )

)
743,542 — —
6,417,796 8,503,251 733,836
391,688 672,644 6,283
6,628 13,649 18,048
5,507 6,075 27,756
427,185 — 387
439,321 19,725 46,191
7,992,348 9,195,621 786,311
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1,130,702 — _
3,871,603 — —
2,291,171 5,948,505 730,755
1,739,114 2,857,271 195,432
9,032,592 8,805,777 926,188
(2020 31 )
( )
1,236,789 — —
4,102,796 — —
2,378,722 5,745,410 750,990
2,047,580 3,060,465 183,098
9,765,888 8,805,876 934,089
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2,919 2,118 800
5,613 5,457 156
28,463 28,181 282
225,714 224,452 1,261
262,711 260,209 2,501
70 70 —
41,431 41,504 73
785 790 5
283,945 284,723 778
326,232 327,089 857
588,943 587,299 1,644
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25,831 23,786 2,044
20,171 19,126 1,045
207,000 200,319 6,680
253,003 243,232 9,771
5,001 7,743 2,741
14,672 14,672 —
18,792 19,384 591
789,288 791,206 1,918
827,754 833,006 5,251
1,080,758 1,076,239 4,519

(
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12,634 — 56 56
348,912 — 3,080 3,080
780,811 776,014 56,912 56,912
461,126 403,909 23,862 23,862
464,129 333,936 13,745 13,745
284,452 147,208 13,476 13,476
1,911,461 1,170,506 51,211 51,211
4,263,529 2,831,575 26,807 26,807
)
@
)
4,911,719 4,024,301 4,914 4,914
10,894,711 6,811,381 29,115 29,115
482,556 271,521 518 518
16,288,987 11,107,203 23,682 23,682
)
@
)
44,000 44,000 929
5,000 — 2
155,500 155,500 1,434
204,500 199,500 2,362
)
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4,19 — 83 83
422,594 — 14,491 14,491
881,811 653,728 69,050 69,050
441,987 350,086 67,285 67,285
394,207 362,347 6,386 6,386
265,757 122,917 19,884 19,884
248,095 143,492 44,249 44,249
1,993,879 1,381,336 100,668 100,668
4,652,529 3,013,908 36,653 36,653
)
@
)
4,645,802 4,034,155 177,949 177,949
9,984,114 6,426,895 236,891 236,891
401,348 275,699 704 704
15,031,265 10,736,749 58,237 58,237
)
@
)
44,000 44,000 1,011
155,500 143,500 1,803
199,500 187,500 2,815
)
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3,706
2,782
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(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
458,931 470,647
444,701 487,375
14,230 16,728
@
27.9 (2018 2019 31 )
27.7 (2019 2020 31 )
(©)
o
(€))
( 2018 (2019
2019 31 2020 31 )
31,408 33,856
1,784 1,529
615 529
816 1,018
864 2,537
33,856 32,359
@
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23,703 21,771

17,978 15,981

5,725 5,789

10,152 10,587

15,877 16,377

15,877 16,653

— 275

15,877 16,377
O]

( 2018 ( 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )

1,784 1,529

417 417

2,201 1,946
©)
®)

(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
0.1 3.2 0.1 3.9
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40,768 47,032
250,518 9,619
114,467 54,554
405,755 111,206
6,836 8,453
398,918 102,752
977,125 661,852
50,188 57,095
1,027,314 718,947
628,395 616,195
) )
( ) ( )
- 57,841 ‘" 60,091
— 686,236 — 676,286
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
30.5 30.6
6.2 6.4
2.1 2.1
26.3 22.1
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( 2018 2019 31 )
( )
) )
177,645 | 1,490,781 | 74,354 | 1,742,781 | 399,125 | 2,141,906 — | 2,141,906
12 5,670 235 5,917 | 20,377 26,295 | 26,295 —
177,658 | 1,496,451 | 74,589 | 1,748,699 | 419,502 | 2,168,201 | 26,295 | 2,141,906
24,864 | 132,822 | 21,940 | 179,627 | 104,955 | 284,583 | 2,775| 281,807
1,627,806 |13,470,340 |1,275,603 |16,373,750 [5,346,897 |21,720,648 — 21,720,648
507 | 292,913 | 27,231 | 320,652 | 152,156 | 472,809 | 16,405 | 456,403
4,955 | 704,003 998 | 709,957 | 57,406 | 767,363 21| 767,385
8,554 52,443 | 15,060 76,057 | 21,678 97,736 — 97,736
)
@ 2,775
0} 16,405
9,284 406,525 78,162
373,913
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195,315 | 1,515,398 | 82,845 | 1,793,559 | 406,998 | 2,200,557 — | 2,200,557
250 9,330 — 9,581 | 20,203 29,784 | 29,784 —
195,566 | 1,524,729 | 82,845 | 1,803,140 | 427,201 | 2,230,342 | 29,784 | 2,200,557
14,434 139,656 5,956 160,047 | 94,775 254,823 6,946 247,876
1,765,755 |13,437,659 1,258,545 (16,461,960 [5,249,539 (21,711,499 — |21,711,499
1,642 306,917 | 28,521 337,080 | 148,021 485,102 | 18,409 466,693
5,796 683,618 1,239 690,654 | 64,166 754,821 20 754,841
11,000 78,842 | 21,470 111,313 | 46,008 157,321 — 157,321
)
€Y 6,946
) 18,409
9,443 443,881 90,394
369,807
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90
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)

177,645 1,425,705 538,555 2,141,906
)
@

)

3,278 4,212,914 287,281 4,503,474

10
(2019 2020 31 )
90

@

)

195,315 1,444,994 560,246 2,200,557
)
@

)

8,816 3,975,148 339,322 4,323,286

10
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77,400
635,401 100 61,480
151,080
)
(2019 2020 31 )
(@)
(2018 2019 31 )
(2019 2020 31 )
( ) ( ) ( )
)
18,100 ) 285,072 — —
Plano,
Ee)éaz 365,000 326,490 326,490
)
)
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2018 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
1,816,366 85 1,884,482 41
141,552 90 142,525 61
)
2018 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
222,308 223,836
( —_ J—
222,308 223,836
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
) 2,893,403 3,005,729
40,799 46,150
2,852,604 2,959,579
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2005 520,999 547,000 | 0.00 2019
) (124,999)
2019 1.91 2028
2014 1,054,922 865,629 | 0.80 |( ) 2019
() (277,882)
() 2020 [ 1,225 [ 230 60.43 2025
()
79,200 86,120
5,000 500
5,800 4,900
1,593 744
33,044 23,324
8,000 13,000
1,400 800
1 1
2007 7,369,135 7,439,238 | 0.07 2019
(1,974,679)
) 2020 [ 43,824 [ 44,132 29.48 2048
()
() 12,408 11,853
2,375 2,003
1,750 2,266
2,167 2,567
8,340 11,325
9,314 7,084
100 550
78 59
1
300
1
8,851,868
— — 8,945,057 (2.377.561) — —
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1,130,702 1,236,789 1.85 —
1,739,114 2,047,580 2.10 —
933,641 1,048,754 1.96 —
) 3,052,704 3,243,564 2.16 | 2021 2038
859,834 908,930 2.04 | 2021 2024
) 3,871,603 4,102,796 1.54 —
()
( )
1,436,189 1,022,816 312,708 288,751
527,621 207,261 19,525 154,521
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(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )
7,215 14,144
7,632 7,738
77,400 48,330
2,250 643
94,497 70,855
82 239
18 76
16,985 13,983
210,239 245,733
113,291 145,604
151,080 151,080
276 2,201
491,873 558,604
491,974 558,920
586,472 629,775
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4,417 4,506
867 2,708
5,284 7,214
728 692
6,012 7,907
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
422,854 466,721
422,854 466,721
579,904 623,771
555 1,902
555 1,902
580,459 621,868
586,472 629,775
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( 2018 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
59,975 51,591
15,556 15,546
75,532 67,138
8,846 8,851
8,846 8,851
66,685 58,286
5,102 7,184
61,583 51,102
498 159
401 220
1,092 —
92 1,128
— 53
33 2
2,117 1,565
673 —
0 31
673 31
63,027 52,635
— 3,949
— 708
— 4,657
63,027 47,978
5,107 4,828
254 716
5,361 4,111
57,665 43,866
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( )
78,525 78,525 465,188 622,238 2,321 624,560
100,000 100,000 100,000
57,665 57,665 57,665
) 1,766 1,766
— — 42,334 42,334 1,766 44,100
78,525 78,525 422,854 579,904 555 580,459
( 2019 2020 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 422,854 579,904 555 580,459
43,866 43,866 43,866
) 2,458 2,458
— — 43,866 43,866 2,458 41,408
78,525 78,525 466,721 623,771 1,902 621,868
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1,092 —
485 159
( 2018 ( 2019
2019 31 ) 2020 31 )
1,799 2,850
1,159 1,307
198 242
139 163
( )
(2019 31 )
(2020 31 )
( ) ( ) ( )
) — — —
[O) 1,580 27,244 25,663
1,580 27,244 25,663
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2019 31 2020 31
203,244 211,477
6,995 32,675
210,239 244,153
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— 1,208

— 838

— 539

— 216

207 203

164 164

45 98

47 94

60 74

47 113

573 3,553

170 1,594

402 1,958

45 45

245 —

290 45

111 1,912

(2019 31 ) (2020 31 )

30.5 30.6
27.8 31.4
5.7 6.4
— 3.0
0.0 0.0
8.5 8.6
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of
Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Satements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2020, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financia statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2020 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to
obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control over financia reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
June 4, 2020

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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